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PREFACE

()M: of the noteworthy dinners made in the

curriculum of both the elementary and tin- hiidi
* O

scliool during the last fifteen years is the lar^e and

Increasing importance ^iven to history. This

change is significant. It empliasi/es the school as

a social institution, the special function of which

is to prepare the learner to become- a useful and

happy member of the soeial body. For in doin^

its proper work the school should ^ive the individ-

ual the power to adjust himself to the' social con-

ditions surrounoi'H
1 him. \S'ich :

ad-justment experi-

ence alone will teae-i 'l'ii,p bms to make-. Hut the
.

individual experience which ''results from contact

with others in eve'v-dav life is at best limited and
*.

narrow. The school n-reatly enlarges this experi-

ence and enables the pupil to share- and profit by

the experience of all humanity in its simple to

achieve its ideals and to live its best life. In the

teaching of history the racial life and experience

are to be made part of the pupil's life and cxpcri-
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ence, to the end that he may grow stronger in men-

tal, emotional, and volitional power, and may also

gain such social insight and social disposition as

will enable him to render his highest service to the

community. The study of history is not only to

develop his individual powers, but it is to enlarge

his experience.

In the lower grades of the elementary school

most of the work in history should be in the form

of oral language lessons, and the subject-matter

should be presented in story form. The concrete,

the personal, and the dramatic, appealing in a

special way to children, should be made promi-

nent, for in this way, and in this way alone, can the

teacher reach the imaginative jand the emotional

life of the child; (')V WTs/i
, ,

'

(

'

( C COCCI

But as early as 'the th^'d 0^; fourth grade, his-

torical readers, adapted, to,;the. pupil's intelligence

and reading ability,; should be-introduced, and from

that time forward reading and language, both oral

and written, should supplement each other. With

such a purpose in view, the author, who has given

long and patient thought to this subject, has pre-

pared this little volume, which is the first of a series

covering the entire range of the history of our
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country. Tlu 1 title of this historical render indi-

cates its scope and purpose. In its preparation

there has heeii no intention of presenting a com-

plete' biographical sketch of each of the explorers

selected. On the contrary, the- aim has heen to nar-

rale, in simple story form, mainly those portions of

the explorers' lives that were more or less closely

identified with American exploration.

It need hardly be suggested that in usin^- a

hook like this the problem is to help the pupil to ^et

at the soul of history, or, to put it in another way,

to enable him to understand how the man whose

life-story is under consideration thought and felt

when he was performing the deeds told of him in

the text. And in thus helping the pupil we arc

furnishing him what he desires. For it is more life

that he craves, and the teacher is to him an inter-

preter of that larger life which is to become a part

of his own.

The yomit' mind should become stored with pict-

ures, the external features, of events: and special

emphasis should be laid upon training the sensuous

imagination, so that the pictures may be living OIK ->.

In the story of Columbus, for example, the' imagi-

nation calls to life the- i^reat discoverer. By the
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mysterious process of sympathy the pupil identi-

fies himself with Columbus, and for the time being

is Columbus. The same is true of Sir Walter

Raleigh, or of any other heroic character. The

child sees, admires, imitates, just as Ernest did in

looking at the Great Stone Face. What the pupil

imitates, moulds and fashions his ideals becomes a

part of the very soul of his being.

But unless the imagination gets vivid pictures

there will be no sympathetic response in the pupil

and no organic union between his life and the life

symbolized in the recorded deeds. All possible

effort should therefore be made to stimulate the

imagination to the formation of vivid pictures.

To do this both the artist and the publishers have

effectively cooperated with the author. It is be-

lieved that the fine illustrations and the excellent

typographical features of the book will combine in

helping the teacher to make real the trials, dan-

gers, and hardships recounted in the various bio-

graphical sketches.

Partly as an aid to the teacher in stimulating the

pupil's image-forming power, various suggestions

and questions are put at the end of every chapter

under the heading
" To the Pupil." These include
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only a very small number of the questions and sug-

gestions that may he used. For in the study oi'

almost every page of the hook the- pupil may well

he asked. What picture do you get 1'roin that

paragraph?' In this way not only is the image-

forming power developed, hut the pupil is helped

to revive and make real the experience that is em-

bodied in the narrative. As the
"
Outline for Oral

and Written Language
'

is intended to be merely

sun-festive, only a small part of the most impor-

tant of the incidents and facts of the narrative are

suggested. It is left for the teacher to enlarge or

modify these topics in any way that may be thought

best to suit the needs and the capacity of the class.

In conclusion, I wish to acknowledge my obli-

gations to Prof. William K. Mead, of Wcsleyan

I

T

ni\ ersity, who has read the manuscript and made

many invaluable suggestions.

WILBUR F. GORDY.

SPRINGFIELD, MASS., June 14, 1900.
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C IIRISTOPIIKK COLI TM1U T

S

KAKLV Lin:

MANY years ago there lived in (Jenna, Italy, a

man named Columbus. lie earned bis living

by making wool ready for tbe spinners. Of bis

four sons, tbe eldest was Christopher, wbo was born

in 14:*<>.

\Ve do not know much about Christopher's boy-

hood, but it seems likely that lie was fond of play-

ing about the wharves near his home. Here heo

could see vessels coming and going, and probably

spent many hours watching their white sails flutter-

in
'

in the brec/c, for in those (lavs mauv vessels
{) *

brought the wealth of other lands to his native city.

In this way, perhaps, there grew in him a fond-

ness 1'or the- sea. But he did not play all the time:

.he had his tasks as well. lie learned his lather's

trade-, and, like other boys, went to school. lie

sludied reading, writing, arithmetic, geography,

and ma]) drawing. lie may have liked geography

best of all. At all events we- know that he learned

i
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He was fond of playing about the wharves

to draw maps so well that when he became a man

he could earn his living by drawing maps and

charts.

THE SEARCH FOR A WATER ROUTE TO INDIA

When he was about thirty-five years old he

made his home in Lisbon.* Here his brother Bar-

* Lisbon is the capital city of Portugal.
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tholomew lived, and here lived many sailors also.

For at this time the men of Portugal were trying

to reach India by a water route. Tliev wished to
*

get the silks, spiers, and precious stones that were

brought from the Far Fast.

The journey through the' Mediterranean Sea
ti

and overland was verv eosllv. It was dangerous,

too, for there were pirates on the sea and robbers

on the land. Therefore the Portuguese, as well as

other people of that time 1

, were eager to find an-

other route, over which travelling was less costly

and less dangerous. They thought they could find

the wav hv sailing down the west coast of Africa.
* *

Hut Columbus felt sure that there was a shorter

wav to India than the route around Africa. Tie

believed that the earth was round, and that by sail-

ing directly across the Atlantic Ocean he could
^j

reach India. If he could succeed in doing this, he

would become a great man, not only by bringing

the wealth of the Indies to Furope, but by proving

that the earth was round.

The more he pondered over this scheme, the

more he longed to carry it out. When, therefore.

he was about thirty-eight years old, he laid his plan

before King John of Portugal. The King lis-
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tened to all that Columbus had to say, but would

not agree to help him. Instead, he did a very

unfair thing he played a trick upon him, as you

might say. For, after finding out what Columbus

was planning, he sent out a company of men, in

secret, to see if they could find the short way to

India.

COLUMBUS AND LITTLE DIEGO GO TO SPAIN

When Columbus learned about this meanness

on the part of the King he was angry, and, taking

his little son, Diego, by the hand, he started off for

Spain. The boy was only four or five years old,

and found the long journey very tiresome. We
may picture father and son walking together along

the rough mountain-roads, the little fellow trudg-

ing bravely by his father's side. But Columbus

could not stop to consider whether his little boy

was tired. He pressed on, as he greatly wished

to find some one to help him work out his plan.

At last he came to Palos, and near this town he

left little Diego with his aunt.

Columbus then continued his journey in search

of the King and Queen of Spain, Ferdinand and

Isabella. They were engaged in war with the
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Moors, whom they were driving out of Spain,

mid Columbus, therefore, had a hard time trying

to get a hearing. At last he was called into their

presence, (fathered about the- King and Queen

were also a uuinl)er of wise men to listen to what

he had to sav.

\Yhcn Columbus told them that the world was

round like' a globe some of the wise men laughed.

Thev said: "Is any one so foolish as to believe
*

that there are people who can walk with their heels

upward and their heads hanging down? Can trees

grow witli their roots above their branches? Can

rain, hail, and snow rise instead of fall?

Vet there were others of the wise' men who did

not laugh. They believed, as Columbus did, that

the world was round like a globe.

TRIALS AND DIFFICULTIES

The King and Queen, however, were not con-

vinced, and at last Columbus, sick at heart, decided

to leave Spain for France. Thus far he had failed.

Men called him a cra/y dreamer. When lie walked

through the villages even the boys laughed at him,

and tapped their foreheads as they pointed their

fingers toward him.
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But Columbus had faith in his plans, and be-

lieved that God was willing to help him. There-

fore, although sad at heart, he started with good

The boys laughed at him and tapped their foreheads

courage for the court of France. Diego, now a

lad of eleven or twelve, went with him, and again

we may picture them as they walked, side by side,

along the country highway.



( 'hristophcr Columbus

History tells us that Columbus was a line-

looking man tall, strong, and well formed.

lie had a noble face, with keen blue-fifray eyes.* t *

His hair, already white, fell in loim 1 locks ahout his

shoulders: and, although plainly dressed, his cour-

teous manner made him pleasing to all whom

In met.

After father and son had <^one ahout a mile

and a half, they stopped to <4'et some bread and

Convent of St. Mary (3

water at the Convent of St. Mary. Just then the

<_^>od prior of the convent passed by, and the two

men fell into conversation. Columbus talked so

well that the prior listened closely to all he had

to say, and, deeply impressed by his earnestness,

wrote at once to Queen Isabella, telling her what

Columbus wished to do. The Queen, who knew
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the prior well, then sent some money to Columbus,

and summoned him back to court.

Having bought himself new and suitable cloth-

ing, with lightened heart he again sought the

Queen's presence. This time she told him that she

liked his plan. But he demanded so much for his

services as leader of the expedition that no agree-

ment was reached. Columbus was much displeased.

He left the Queen's presence and, mounting his

mule, started off alone to seek aid in France.

Shortly after he had left the court, however,

an officer begged the Queen to recall him. She

did so by sending a messenger on a swift horse to

overtake him. On his return the Queen told him

she would furnish him with men and vessels for

the expedition.

THE LITTLE FLEET SETS SAIL

But his trials had only begun, for the ocean

was unknown, and sailors were afraid. They called

the Atlantic Ocean the Sea of Darkness, and be-

lieved that in it were frightful monsters ready to

destroy the vessels that might sail near them.

In course of time, however, three small vessels

with one hundred and twenty men were ready to
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start. The vessels were not larger than many of

the fishing-boats oi' to-day. The- largest was called

tin- S<uila Maria, and the other two were the Pitita

and the \ina.

>-

Santa Maria Pinta Nina

The fleet (it Christopher Columbus

A half-hour before sunrise on Friday morning,

August 3, 14!)'J, the little fleet sailed out of the

port of Palos. It was a sorrowful time for the

poor sailors and their friends. All believed that

the vessels would certainly be lost, and that the

sailors would never apiin see home- and friends.

Columbus steered for the Canary Islands, where
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he stopped three weeks to repair the rudder of the

Pinta. On September 6th they again set sail.

Soon they were out of sight of land. Then the

sailors cried and sobbed like children.

NEW TRIALS AND DANGERS

Fresh calamities awaited them. At the end

of a week the compass-needle no longer pointed

to the North Star. A few days later the fleet en-

tered a vast stretch of seaweed. At first the vessels

sailed easily over this mass of weeds and grass,

but later, when the wind slackened, they moved

more slowly. The sailors were greatly troubled.

On every side of them, almost as far as the eye

could reach, they saw the sea covered with a green

carpet of weeds and grass. They feared the ves-

sels would stick fast in this grass or run upon

rocks lying just below the surface of the water, and

that they themselves would be shipwrecked. But

when the wind blew up a little stronger, the vessels

passed on in safety.

This danger passed and others loomed up. At

length, after many days, their hearts were cheered

by flocks of birds. They felt that land must be

near. In fact, they often shouted
" Land!

' when
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tbey thought they saw it in the distance. Hut they

wen- as often mistaken. Xo land appeared, and

their fears deepened day l>v day.
*

Then they entered the helt of trade-winds thai

blew them steadily westward. They said: \Ve
.

are lost! \Ve can neyer see our friends again. We
can never sail borne against this wind that is bear-

ing us farther and farther from all we love." Tbey

begged Columbus to turn about and steer for

home. Tie refused. They became angry. They

called him cra/y. Tbey threatened his life. They

said :

"
Let us push him overboard some night

when be is looking at the stars."

Columbus knew bis life was in danger, but be

did not despair. He still bad faith and hope. The

greater the danger the more firmly be set himself

to meet it with a strong will and high purpose.

LAND

On October 11 tb all were encouraged by signs

of land. The sailors saw a thorn branch, a reed,

and a carved stick floating by. Now the King and

Queen had promised a reward of nearly six hun-

dred dollars to the sailor who should first see land.

Columbus also had promised a velvet cloak. \\Y
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may well believe, therefore, that each wished to be

the first to catch a glimpse of land.

That night no one slept. Every one was look-

ing for the first sign of the distant shore. About

'

: ,

The landing of Columbus

ten o'clock in the evening Columbus himself saw

a light in the distance. It looked like a torch in

the hand of a man running along the shore. About

two o'clock next morning, Friday, October 12th,*

a sailor on board the Pinta saw, about five miles

* October 21st, according to our present method of reckoning time.
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oil', a low strip of land. This was an island of the

Hahania group.

All were eager 1'or the dawn. Karly in the

morning boats were lowered, and everybody went

ashore. Columbus, dressed in a rieh robe of bright

searlet, bore aloi't the roval standard. As soon as

be reached the land he threw himself, kneeling,

upon the ground. With tears in his eyes he kissed

the earth and, thanking God for the safe voyage,

took possession of the land in the name of King

Ferdinand and Queen Isabella. The sailors fell

upon their knees before Columbus and begged him

to forgive them for all their evil thoughts toward

him.

THE INDIANS

At first the natives, whom Columbus called

Indians because he thought he was in the Kast

Indies, ran to the woods. They feared the Span-

iards, but later they returned and worshipped these

white men because thev thought thev were beingsC7

from the sky. They believed the vessels to be great

birds, and the sails to be large white wings.

The Spaniards at once began to trade with the

Indians. They exchanged tiny bells, red caps, and
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glass beads for tame parrots, cotton yarn, and a

few gold ornaments.

These Indians were poor, dark-skinned, and

naked. Their bodies were painted in various colors.

The men carried sticks, pointed with fish-bones, for

javelins. They used canoes, which they moved with

paddles looking like wooden shovels. These canoes,

which were made of single trunks of trees, were

sometimes large enough to carry forty men.

COLUMBUS IN THE NEW WORLD

Columbus called the island on which he had

landed San Salvador, which means Holy Saviour.

Continuing his voyage, he sailed along the coast

of Cuba and Hayti. He thought he was in India,

and was therefore on the lookout for the cities of

Asia, where he expected to find the gold, spices,

and precious stones he so eagerly sought.

On Christmas morning he had a bad mishap.

While it was still dark, near the shore of Hayti
one of his little vessels ran aground on a sand-bar,

and was soon knocked to pieces by the waves. The

Pinta had already deserted the fleet, so that now

there remained but one vessel, the Nina.

As this frail craft was too small for all the men
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to live in, forty of the sailors decided to stay heliind

when Columbus should sail. They huilt a fort out

of the timbers of the wrecked vessel, and placed

its inins inside 1 the- fort. There Columbus left the-D

men with provisions Cor a year. 'This was the first

Spanish colony in the- New World.

A STORMY HKTUKX VOYACJK

On January 4, 149tt, the XIIHI sailed for Spain.

Soon afterward the Pinta, whose captain had been

trading with the natives, joined her. Everything

went wc-11 until February 12th, when a fearful storm

arose, which threatened to destroy the vessels.

Columbus was almost overcome in his struggle

to meet this grim danger. It would, indeed, be

hard to lose all that he had spent so many years
*

in trying to realize. Should he now perish without

letting the world know what he had done?

In his distress he wrote on parchment two ac-

counts of his discovery, and sealed and addressed

them to the King and Queen of Spain. Wrap-

ping each of these accounts in cloth and enclosing

them in large cakes of wax, he placed them in bar-

rels, one of which he threw into the sea and the

other he kept on board of his vessel. But, as good



American 'Explorers

fortune would have it, the little Nina weathered

the storm, and on March 15th entered the harbor

of Palos in safety.

Columbus throwing the barrel overboard

Great was the joy of the people that day. They
stopped all business to give a welcome to the man
who had won success for himself and for Spain.
His praise was now on every man's lips.
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rm.r.Miii's noxour.i) IN SPAIN

Soon Columhus round liis way to Bareelona,

where he was honored hy a street parade.

The triumphal entry of Columluis into Barcelona

tlu- parade- were six Indians who had returned with

him. They were smeared with paint and decked

with feathers of hirds. Next to them came men

carrying stuffed and live hirds of beautiful plum-
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age, also from the New World. Columbus, at-

tended by man}7 of Spain's great men, rode on

horseback.

When the parade reached the house where King
Ferdinand and Queen Isabella were, Columbus

sought their presence. They honored him by rising

when he entered, and when he knelt to kiss their

hands they commanded him to rise and sit with

them as an equal.

The ' '

idle dreamer
' was now one of the great

men of Spain. Everybody was eager to share his

honor and his fame. There was no longer any diffi-

culty in getting some of the most powerful men

in the country to join him on a second voyage.

They imagined they would return with great wealth

if they should go with Columbus on his second

voyage to the far-famed East.

THE SECOND VOYAGE TO THE NEW WORLD

In September, 1493, Columbus sailed again.

This time there was no trouble in making up a

company. He had with him a fleet of seventeen

vessels and fifteen hundred men. Many of the

men belonged to the best families in Spain. As
Columbus planned to found a colony, he took with
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him on this expedition, not only horses, mules. and

cattle, hut vines, vegetables, and many kinds of

seeds.

lie expected to find the men whom he had left

on his first voyage the- winter hel'ore, hut on reach-

ing the place in Ilayti where the- colony had heen

there- was no one to welcome him. lie- fired guns.

hut there- was no answering salute. \o one was in

the fort. It had hcen torn down, the remnant of

food had heen destroyed, and not one of the fortv
*

men remained. Kleven dead INK lies were found

1 juried near hy.

After building a little town that he called Isa-

hella, in honor of the Queen, Columbus stalled out

to explore the new country. ISut trouhle met him

on every hand. The Indians were not always

friendly, and his own men were often unwilling

to obey him. At length, at the end of three 1

years, he sailed hack to Spain, leaving the settle-

ment in a wretched condition. After a long
1

, try-

ing voyage, during which all the food on hoard

was used up, he and his men, almost starved, at

last reached home. lie was kindly received, and
/

was told that he should have more ships for another

voyage.
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LATER VOYAGES AND LAST DAYS OF COLUMBUS

A few years later he set sail on a third voyage.

Hut when he returned to the little town he had

built he found things

were going badly.

Trouble had arisen

with the Indians,

and more serious

difficulties among
the settlers them-

selves.

For two long

years Columbus

tried to make things

right, but he was not

successful. Many
people were begin-

ning to lose faith in

him because they did

not get the wealth

that they had sup-

posed they should find by joining in his voyages.

Others were jealous of him, and made plans for

liis ruin.

Columbus in chains
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At length an ollieer was sent i'roni Spain, lo

examine 1 into the aH'airs of the colony. When he

reached the settlement, he took Columbus's prop-

erty, put Columbus himself in chains, and sent him

hack to Spain in dishonor. In this sad condition

Columbus came into the presence of the Queen, who

had summoned him to court. When she saw him

she wept, and he also broke down and IV 11 at her

feet, weeping.

A few years later be went on a fourth voyage.

Hut he was shipwrecked, and spent a long
1

year of

hardship and misery. At last he returned to Spain,

where be arrived but a short time before Queen

Isabella, bis only protector, died. For eighteen

months C'olumbus lived, broken in health and cast

down in spirit. On ^lay '20, 1 .>()(>, be died of a

broken heart, not knowing the grandeur of his dis-

covery- -the discovery of a new world.

OtTLIXK FOR ORAL AND WRITTEN LANCJT.UiK

BOYHOOD OK ( 'OI.IMIH s.

SEARCH mi; \ WATEB KOTTK TO IXDIA.

KIM; .JOHN'-; MKAX THICK.

LOM; .ion;\i.v or COI.IMI;I> \\n Diu.o.

COIJMIU s IN THI: n;i -i MI <>r 1111 SPVNISH Ki\(; AND (^i 1.1 N.
t

Tin: \M-;I; MI;.N AND COLUMBUS.
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is MI:I;TI\C WITH THE PRIOR.

Col, I MMI S INVITED TO THE COURT.

Tin: (^i i i:\ AGREES TO FURNISH MEN AND MONEY.

THE LITTLE FLEET SAILS.

NEW TRIALS AND DANGERS.

COLUMBUS'S LIFE IN DANGER.

Tin: PROMISED REWARD: "LAND!"

THE INDIANS.

( 'on MliUS THINKS HE IS IN INDIA.

A HAD MISHAP ON CHRISTMAS MORNING.

Till: FORT AND THE COLONY.

A FEARFUL STORM AT SEA.

SAFE RETURN TO PALOS.

TlIE STREET PARADE.

COLUMBUS HONORED BY THE KING AND THE QUEEN.
TllE SECOND VOYAGE.

Nl W TROUBLES.

Col. I MBUS IN CHAINS.

HE DIES OF A BROKEN HEART.

TO THE PUPIL

1. Tell about Columbus's life when a boy.
2. Can you picture him and Diego on their long journey? Tell

about it.

3. Why did people call Columbus a crazy dreamer? How did he
look?

4. Describe the trials he had on his first voyage. Why did the
sailors wish to kill him?

5. Tell what happened on the night when the sailors saw the light on
the shore.

6. Picture the storm at sea on the return voyage. What did Co-
lumbus do?

7. Describe the street parade.

Why was Columbus no longer thought to be an idle dreamer?
9. What new troubles did he have on his return to the New World?

10. Why was he taken to Spain in chains?
11. What great work did he do? When?
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T1UHKS AM) (LANS

As we have learned, Columbus called the people

of the New World Indians. They were divided

into tribes, and each tribe had at least one chief.

There were' Indian elans, also, the members of

which were thought to he related to each other

in the same wav as you are related to your uncles,* /

aunts, cousins, and so on. A clan was generally

named after some animal or bird, whose figure or

picture it used as its emblem. For instance, an

Indian of the wolf clan tattooed on his breast the

picture of a wolf; an Indian of the hawk clan tat-

tooed on his breast the picture of a hawk.

The Indians did not all look alike nor dress

alike. They did not live in the same kind of houses.

In fact, with respect to si/e, dress, house's, and

manner of life, the Indian tribes living in various

parts of the country differed from each other quite

as much as the Knglish differed from the Spanish,

the French, or the Dutch.

23
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HOW THE INDIANS LOOKED

Although the Indians of the many tribes did

nut look alike, we may say, in general, that they

had st rnitfht black hair, small black eyes, high cheek-

hones, and were of a reddish-brown or copper color.

Tin- women wore their hair long. The men, in most

..!' the tribes, shaved their heads except at the top,

where they left a scalp-lock. Of this we shall hear

a little more as our story proceeds.

HOW THEY DRESSED

Before the white men came, the dress of the

Indians was made largely of the skins of wild

animals. The men wore a strip of skin a foot or

more wide and a number of feet long. This was

held in place by a belt around the waist, the ends,

f
decorated with

> i ..\.*
beads

:

han inK
down in front and

behind. The men

also wore leg-

gings of buckskin.

For festive oc-

casions they hadBlackfool cjilniiicl, or tobacco-pipe
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robes of skin. Sometimes these were embroidered

with porcupine quills, bird feathers, heads, and other

finery. The Indians were 1'ond of ornaments, and

liked to wear necklaces made of elks' teeth, bears'

claws, and beads.

Instead of wearing shoes of leather, as we do,

they wore moccasins. 'Fhe various tribes had dif-

i'erent ways of shaping them. 'The simplest kind

of moccasin had one scam behind the heel and one

o\ er the foot. More elaborate patterns had a piece

over the instep, much embroidered. Some also had

Haps, which \m\\g down from the ankle. Kut what-

ever the varjetv of detail, they were all alike in one
*

respect, and that was in having no soles. Thus

they were soft and noiseless, and made the best
*

kind of covering for a hunter's foot. The pieces

of the moccasin were sewed together, although the

Indians had no needles and thread such as we use.

Their needle was a small bone of a fish, and their

thread the 1 sinews of a deer or some other animal.

The Indian woman, called a squaw, wore a loose

upper garment with short sleeves, and apron, le^
1 -

^,'in^s, and moccasins. 'The le.i^in^s and mocca-

sins were sometimes made of one piece.
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Till: VILLAGE AND THE WIGWAM

.Many of the Indians lived in villages. These

\\erc nearly always small, seldom having more than
*

a few hundred people in them, and as a rule even

less. In many tribes these villages consisted of

wigwams, which were occupied by single families.

To construct a wigwam a few poles were planted

in a circle, and the ends gathered together and

fastened at the top, where a hole was left for the

smoke to escape.

The wigwam, both within and without, was cov-

ered by skins, mats, or bark. Sometimes a bear-

skin served for a door. There was no floor except

the hare earth, and no carpet. There were no chairs

and there were no tables, but around the sides of the

wigwam the Indian sometimes put brush or skins

of animals, to sit or lie upon. There was also a

platform or shelf for provisions and for the house-

hold utensils.

The Indians were hospitable to strangers, and

whenever one found his way to a wigwam they were

n-ady to give him both food and shelter. Suppose
"< pay an imaginary visit to one of the wigwams.

us push aside the bear-skin that serves as a
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door and enter. Although it may he a cold day,

there is no stove nor fireplace, for this Trail struct-

ure has no chimncv. JJut in the centre of the

An Indian chief, sqiia\v, pappoosr, ami village

room we find a fire in a hole or pit, where the

squaw is cooking something to eat. The wigwam
is somewhat smok, hut much of the smoke is
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out through the opening at the top. After a short

time we may get used to the thick atmosphere and

not mind it any more than the Indians do.

FOOD AND COOKING

The Indians usually had but one meal in the

day together. At other times, when hungry, they

iite alone. Indian corn furnished the principal

article of food, but besides corn the Indians raised

beans, pumpkins, and melons. They used little

salt, because they could not get it. At times they

had very little food for long periods, during which

they had to live on such light diet as berries, roots,

M ( (Is. and herbs.

Hut if on our imaginary visit we arrive in the

wigwam, during a time when food is plentiful

and while a meal is being prepared, perhaps we
shall see a piece of meat on a sharpened stick cook-

ing over the fire, or roasting on the coals. We
may see a cake made of Indian corn pounded fine,

baking he-fore the fire. Possibly we shall find in

a wooden bowl some succotash, made by boiling
corn and beans together. Or, again, it may be

thai meat, fish, corn, beans, and perhaps other

tilings, are all boiling together.



The

\Vc are amused to sec how the Indians boil their

i'ood and Iicat water. Their kettles arc made of

linglazed pottery and wood, which cannot be put

over the- fire. The squaw, therefore, lias to heat

w;ilcr bv throwing hot stones into it. If our host
i*

invites us to sit down and eat with him. as lie most

eertainlv will, we nmv look i'or plates, but we shall

find none-. \Ve may look I'or cups and saucers and

knives and forks, too, but we shall find none. If,

however, we are to be weleome guests, we must do

as the- Indians do. \Ve must each dip our hands

into the kettle, draw out what we wish, and eat it

by using our finders for knives and forks. Perhaps

we shall find a kind of flesh that we never ate be-

fore-, -dog* flesh,- -but we must eat without ques-

tioning.

The- Indian wigwam we have visited may serve
*

as a general type of most Indian wigwams through-

out the- land, though some tribes had their own

peculiar ways of living
1

. The Iroquois, for exam-

ple, lived in houses which were verv different from

those occupied by the tribes living in Xcw Kng-
land. Of course the food of the Indians along the

Atlantic coast was not precisely the same as that

of the Indians on the great Western prairies. On
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the prairies
abounded animals such, as the buffalo,

which were never seen in the East.

When the Indians on the plains killed a buffalo,

it was their habit to skin it. Then they made a

'

. Hunting the bison

hole in the "'round, something like a bowl in shape,

where they put the buffalo skin, hairy side down,

and filled it with water. This served as a sort of

kettle. In a fire near by they heated stones, and

dropped them into the water to make it hot enough
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to hoil tin 1 hufl'alo meat. After they had cooked
i

and eaten their meal tlicv cut the rest of the meat

into strips and liini^
1

it up in the sun to dry. This

kind of drying was called jerking, and when meat

was dried in this way it would keep a lon<_^ time,

and could he cooked as it was needed. Sometimes

the dried strips were- smoked oxer the fire. At

other time's the' squaws pounded the fresh meat

and mixed it with fat. This mixture' they called

pemmicau, and the Northern Indians used it a

'ood deal for food.

THE MAN'S

It is sometimes said that the squaw had to do all

the work. People who say this believe that the

Indian brave was Ia/v, and wished to make a slave

of his wife. Hut this is not true, for the man

had his work to do as the woman had hers.

In some of the tribes the men gathered the ma-

terials for the wigwam, and the women set up the

poles and put the parts together. When the family

moved, as it often did. it carried alon^ those por-

tions of the wiffwam that were 1 worth savinu
1

.O <i

The man did not. as a rule, carry any of the bur-
*

dens, because he had to be ready to protect himself
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and his family from the attacks of enemies. He

also had to he free to hunt for the food that he

and his family needed.

Sometimes dogs were used to help them, for be-

fore- the white men came the Indians had no horses.

Hut if there were no dogs the woman, or squaw,.

acted as a heast of burden, carrying the skins and

the various articles used in the household.

It is surprising how large a load the dog could

carry. A pole was fastened on each side, and on

these poles packs, often weighing from seventy-five

to one hundred pounds, were placed for the dog
to pull behind him. After the white man came

and brought the horse, the Indian in some of the

tribes used this animal to help him in his moving.

Many of the Indian tribes lived mainly by hunt-

ing and fishing. These occupations were not a

pastime or a kind of sport, as with most of us, but

were work. If the Indian had not got food by
hunt inn and fishing, he would have starved. Much
of his time was taken up also by making war upon
other tribes.
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Tin; SQTAW s PART 01 Tin; WOKK

The woman's work kept her husy about the

home. She- prepared the meals, made- the clothing,

such as it was. and the various articles used in the

household. She tended the patches of corn, melons,

brans, squashrs, and pumpkins. Her farming im-

plements were 1

very simple, for generally shr had

only a pointed stick with which to scratch the

ground. Shr was indeed fortunate when she had

a hoe made of the shoulder-blade of the buffalo

or elk. She also gathered wood, made fires, set up
the wigwams, and, as we have seen, did the principal

part of the moving. Among her other occupations

were making pottery, weaving baskets, and dress-

ing skins.

In dressing buffalo skins, the Indians who lived

on the Western plains first stripped the skin from

the body of the buffalo. Next they fastened it

to the ground by pegs, and thus stretched it as

tightly as they could. They carefully spread it,

with the flesh side up, in such a way that the sun

could bla/e upon it until the' skin was dry and

hard. After it was dry thev nibbed it with fat till

it was soft and pliable. It was thru ready for use.
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Such kinds of work as we have just considered

kept the squaw busy much of the time. But her

most important duty was the care of the children.

She had a queer looking cradle for her little pap-

poose, as she called the Indian child. Perhaps

we might hotter call the Indian cradle a cradle-

hoard. It was from two to three feet long and

nearly a foot wide, and covered with skins and
*

grass and moss. The child was wrapped in cloth-

ing or blankets and fastened to this cradle-board.o

Thus secured, the pappoose was sometimes carried

on the mother's back while she was travelling or

working. Sometimes she tied up the cradle-board

to the branch of a tree. It did no good for the

pappoose to cry, for the squaw paid no attention

to the crying. Hence, the little fellow soon learned

to suffer hunger or thirst or pain without a whim-

per or a tear.

The cradle-board was kept in use until the pap-

poose was nearly two years old. At an early age,

or as soon as lie could hold a bow and arrow, he

was taught- to shoot at a mark. That was a part of

Ins training. He never went to a school like yours,
lu t it was necessary for him to learn how to shoot

the how ;md arrow and to throw the tomahawk.
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lie had to Irani to swim like a fish and dive

like a beaver, to climb trees like- a squirrel and to

run like a deer. lie had to learn how to set traps

for wild animals, and hou to hunt and kill them.

He- was taught to howl like a wolf, to hleat like- a

fawn, to (juaek like a duck, and to gobble like- a

turkey. BY Imitating these wild creatures he could
i

hetter get near them in order to kill them.

TIIK INDIAN HUNTKR AM) WARRIOR

He also had to learn how to track his enemies,

and how to conceal his own tracks when trvins*
1

to

get away from his enemies. lie had to become a

brave, strong warrior, and be able to kill his foe,

and to prevent his foe from killing him. In hunt-

ing, the Indian sometimes wore the head and skin

of the animal that he wished to kill. In such a

disguise, he would steal upon the animal and strike

it down. Stealing upon an animal in this way is

called stalking.

Sometimes the Indian would go out with a torch

at night, and thus approach the animal and kill it

while it was staring at him. Sometimes with a

torch lie would go out in a boat at night and spear

fish.
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Hut one of the most important parts of the

ninii's work was to make war upon his enemies.

Some-times before going to war the Indians would

hold a council, where the leading warriors spoke.

\Vlicn the council was over, the Indian chief would

paint his body black from head to foot and go
out into the forest to consult the spirits.

Indian war-dance

On his return to the village the Indians made
n-ady for the war-dance. They drove a painted
post into the ground, and then formed a great
circle- around it. When all was ready the warriors

whirled about this pole, hooting and yelling, while
I'" 1

boys and squaws beat time with drums. Soon
' chief leaped inside of the circle and struck the

posl with ],js tomahawk. When he did this the
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dancers stopped their hide-oils noises and stood still.

Then the 1 chid' chanted the story of his brave deeds

and those- of his ancestors. He told bow many

prisoners be had captured and how many scalps

be bad taken from the- brads of bis enemies. When

be finished, some other warrior stepped inside the

circle and did the same tiling.

After tin- war-dance the Indians started off

stealthily through the forest, in single file. Their

favorite method of fighting was to surprise their

enemies by making a sudden dash upon them.

They would thus be likely to kill or capture more

warriors than they themselves lost.
/

An Indian always tried to get the scalp of bis

enemy. This lie did by cutting from the top of

the bead a small piece of skin to which was at-

tached the scalp-lock. Every Indian warrior, as

we have seen, shaved his bead, leaving only the
c i *

scalp-lock. It was a point of honor with the Indian

to get as many scalp-locks as be could. Sometimes

he displayed them in his wigwam, to show how

great a warrior be was.
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TREATMENT OF CAPTIVES

On returning, the war party would often bring

captives some of whom they might adopt into

the tribe. For the Indians at times were glad to

do this because their numbers were often much

thinned by war.

Sometimes, however, the captives were tortured

and put to death. One of the favorite means of

trying their courage was to have them run the

gauntlet. The warriors, squaws, old men, and boys

would form two long lines, each facing the other.

Thus standing, each Indian was armed with a stick,

a club, a tomahawk, or a stone, with which to strike

the prisoner as he ran. The poor wretch would

dart rapidly between the lines, and each Indian

would try to strike him a blow as he passed. He
was fortunate if in a little while he was not so

weakened by the blows that he could not run at all.

Hut the Indians did not care to kill him at this

time, as they preferred to keep him and burn him
to death. While burning him they tortured him
in various ways. You see they were a very cruel

people. They had not learned to be kind.
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TJIK INDIAN .Ml.l'IlOl) OF SENDING QTU'Iv .M ESSAGES

\\
r

lic'ii a war partv had won a victory, they
*

would often wish that their friends at home should

get the good news as soon as possible. The Ind-

ians had, of course, no newspapers, telegraph

lines, and telephones, as we have, hut they had

various ways of sending messages to people at a

distance. For instance, the war party might kindle

a fire on a hillside. The smoke going up from one

large fire might mean that the party was successful,

and the smoke from ten small fires might signify

that the party had brought back ten scalps. In

such ways rising lines of smoke would tell various

things to the friends of the war party many miles

away, just as the telegraph or telephone now con-

veys messages to our distant friends.

THE CANOE AND THE DUGOUT

The Indian had no modern means of travel like

our wagons, trolley cars, or railway trains, but he

moved about a good deal. lie often found it nec-

essary to move for the sake of finding new hunt-

ing-grounds or places for fishing. As I have

already told you, he would most likely have starved
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but for the food which he got by hunting and

fishing.

Sometimes in journeying through the forest he

took a path made by wild animals. But it was

much easier for him to travel by water, and in doing

this he found the canoe very useful. In passing

through the forest, from one body of water to an-

other, he carried the canoe on his shoulders. Some-

times, then, the canoe had to carry its owner and

sometimes the owner had to carry the canoe. It

therefore had to be of light weight.

The bark canoe was made of a framework of

strips of wood, fastened closely together by tough
roots or by sinews. This framework was covered

with pieces of bark that were sewed together, some-

times by long roots. The whole was made water-

tight by covering the seams with pitch and grease.

Sometimes such a bark canoe would hold fifty

people.

The Indians made also a kind of boat by hol-

lowing the trunk of a huge tree. Having cut the

tree down, partly by burning and partly by chop-

ping with a stone axe, they would burn out a part
of the trunk, and by the use of stones or shells

scoop it into shape. Such a boat, made from a
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le *'iaMt lo^
-

, would sometimes accommodate

iiftv o!' sixtv warriors.
*

The Indian knew all the- rivers and lakes and

streams within a lon<_>' distance' of his home. lie

could shoot the rapids, and could easily carry his
*

canoe over the carrying-places aloii^
1 which lie had

to pass in making his journeys. A tract of land

Iviim 1 between two bodies of water was called a

carrying-place, or portage.

Ih- could travel hundreds of miles without the

use of a compass. This was easy for him, because

lie could find his way through the woods by watch-

ing the position of the sun above the hori/on.

It must have been a lonely life that the Indian
%/

led when, as often happened, be was by himself in

the woods. There were times when an Indian hunt-

er would be
(
i>'one from the village for months, all

alone in his canoe.

THE INDIAN IN WINTER

III the winter, wben the lakes and rivers were

fro/en, the- canoe was no longer useful. Then,

when the Indian brave wished to
t
i>'o abroad, be took

his snow-shoes with him. These were two or three

feet in length and a foot or more in width, with
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curved sides tapering at the front and back. They

were light and strong, and were often made of a

maple-wood frame, filled in with a net-

work of deer's hide or sinews. They

were fastened at the back of the foot

by a cord or thongs extending over

the instep, and had a small loop in front

for the toes. With his snow-shoes the

Indian could travel forty miles a day,

and could even overtake a deer or moose.

During the winter the Indian war-

rior spent most of his time in eating

and sleeping, and in making the weap-

ons that he used in warring, hunt-

ing, and fishing. But mingled with his work was

much that he enjoyed. For instance, he was fond of

telling about his deeds. At night the Indians would

sit around the fire and hear the stories told by war-

riors. To these recitals the children and the squaws
listened eagerly, and in this way the children

learned a great deal of the history of their people.

THE MEDICINE-BAG AND THE MEDICINE-MAN

Before going to hunt, the Indian consulted his

medicine-bag, which was made of the skins of ani-

Snow-shoes
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inals and birds and reptiles. It looked something

like- a pouch, but just what it contained no one but
ii

its owner knew. The Indian commonly fastened
v

it to bis clothing or carried it in bis band. It was

always stnll'ed with
(
L>'rass, moss, or something of

that sort, and often kept bidden under the clothing.

It was carefully closed, and seldom opened. \Ve

know, at all events, that it contained the things

that seemed to him to have ma^ie qualities. The

most sacred thiim' in it was, very likely, some
i i

fc
' / '

scraj) or relic, like a tooth, a bone, or the claw of

an animal or bird. This was dear to the Indian

because, as he thought, it protected him from dan-

ger or evil of every kind.

lie believed that not only every man and every
/ / /

animal has a spirit, -or manitou, as lie called it,-

but that trees, rocks, streams, flowers, stones, and,

in fact, all things, have spirits. There were j'ood

spirits, which were ready to help men, and there

were bad ones, which were ready to hurt them. If
/

an Indian had a disease, it was because some bad

spirit had entered his body.

Hence, it was important for an Indian to have

power over both ^ood and bad spirits, and he could

exercise this power by usin^ certain ma^ic words
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or by having about him something magical that

would protect him.

A medicine-man and a canoe

The Indian believed that all his evils like pain,

disease, and death came from bad spirits. But

there was a cure, for the medicine-man was sup-

posed to know how7 to control the spirits. When
an Indian was sick the medicine-man danced about



The Indian* !">

his patient, shaking his frightful rattles in order

to drive out the had spirit.

Another method of curing a disease- was to have

the patient take a vapor hath. lie was put into

a low hut or lodge of hark or skin, whieh was air-

tight and had hut one opening. Water was

poured upon heated stones within this eahin, and

the steam soon filled the plaee and made the sick

man sweat. Then the patient rushed out, even

when the weather was hitterlv cold, or was carried

out into an iev stream or lake, or was rolled in a
/

snow-hank. This treatment was likely either to

cure him or kill him.

HOW THEY TREATED THEIR DEAD

The Indians had various methods of burial.

Sometimes they used graves, stone pits, or huts;

sometimes they placed the corpse in a tree or on

a scaffold, and sometimes they put it where they

knew birds or beasts would eat it.

The tribes that buried their dead buried also

weapons, tools, food, and drink with the bodies of

their dead. Thev believed that the dead man's

spirit would need in the other world the things he

used in this world. They knew that the things
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they buried with the dead body did not themselves

go with the spirit of the dead, but they thought

that the spirits of these things did.

After the Indians got horses they sometimes

killed the favorite horse of the dead man. When

burying a young child, some tribes killed a dog,

so that its spirit might go with the spirit of the

young child and help him find his way to the spirit

world.

WRONG IDEAS ABOUT THE INDIANS

It has often been said that the Indians could

hear and see better than the white man. But this

is not true, if we compare the Indian hunter with

the white backwoodsman. The Indian was brought

up in the woods, and he had to learn to hunt and

trap animals there and protect himself from his

enemies. If he did not hear and see well, he did

not succeed in hunting, in finding his enemies, or

in escaping them when they were trying to find

him. Keen sight and alert hearing were as neces-

sary to him as were the bow and arrow and the

tomahawk and club. But this was equally true of

the white warrior when he lived in the woods, for

he, too, had to use his eyes and ears just as the
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Indian did, and he 1 could hear and sec as well as the

I ndian.

There is another mistake made' about the Ind-

ian. Some people think that he was by nature

gloomy and serious, but such was not the case-. He
was almost always cheerful, and liked to be with

other people. The reason why the white men

thought he was not cheerful was because in their

presence he was solemn and dignified on public

occasions.

\Ve often hear it said also that the Indian could

endure much pain without showing any signs of

Buffering. lie could and did when he was in pub-

lic, lie could endure great torture without making
a moan, because be thought it was cowardly for a

warrior to cry out in the presence of enemies, no

matter how much pain he suffered. But in bis pri-

vate home-life be was often very childish, sometimes
.

making a great ado oyer a little suffering.

HOW THE WHITE MAN CHANGED THE INDIAN'S LIFE

Before the white man came, the Indian lived a

very simple life as a hunter, fisherman, and warrior.

lie had no goats or sheep or horses or cows as we

have now in the country. As already noted, he had
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dogs, but he had to get his horses and other domes-

tic animals from the traders. He was at first very

much afraid of horses, but afterward he used them

Moccasins, tomahawk, bow and arrows, and shield of the

Blackfoot Indians

to great advantage in making war upon other Ind-
ian tribes and upon the white men.

The Indian soon learned also how to use the

gnn. This made a great difference in the life of
tin- Indian. Before the white man came, the prin-
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cipal weapons lit- had were- tin- how and arrow,

the cluh, and the tomahawk. These- he used with

much skill, hut they did not help him to get his

food and kill his enemies as easily as did the mm.

In these ways the whites greatly changed the

Indian's life hy making it easier for him to get

his food and do his work.

As you grow older you will learn that ever since

the- white man eame to this country, several hundred

years ago, he has been teaching the Indian the meth-

ods and customs of civilized life.

HOW CONTACT WITH INDIAN LIFE CHANGED THE

LIFE OF THE WHITE MAN

But the Indian also changed the life of the

white man. For when the earlv settler went out
v

into the woods he had to live very much as the Indian
/

did, and fight him in true Indian fashion. He
had to learn how to track his foe. He had to learn

how to conceal his trail when he was going through

the forest. He not only dressed as the Indians did,j

hut he also lived in simple houses very much like

their wiffwams. He ate such food as they were
(.

' *

likely to find in the forest, and, like them, he often
/

suffered for lack of food. More than once hungry
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si- tilers received food from Indians. As you read

about the early English settlements in various parts

of New England and in Virginia, you will see how

many times the Indians, in their kindness, kept the

poor white settlers from starving.

OUTLINE FOR ORAL AND WRITTEN LANGUAGE

How THE INDIANS LOOKED.

THEIR DRESS.

Av IMAGINARY VISIT TO A WIGWAM.

FOOD AND CLOTHING.

A MEAL WITH THE INDIANS.

How THE INDIANS MADE USE OF THE BUFFALO.

WORK OF THE INDIAN BRAVE.

THE SQUAW'S WORK.

DRESSING BUFFALO SKINS.

TlIE PAPPOOSE AND THE CRADLE BOARD.

WHAT THE INDIAN BOY LEARNED TO DO.

Ml.THODS OF HUNTING.

THE WAR DANCE.

THE SCALP-LOCK.

Rl \\ING THE GAUNTLET.

INDIAN MKTHOD OF SENDING QUICK MESSAGES.

THE BARK CANOE AND THE DUGOUT.

TlllO CARRYING-PLACE.

Tin: SNOW-SHOE.

'I'm: INDIAN IN WINTER.

THE INDIAN'S BELIEF IN GOOD AND BAD SPIRITS.

TIM: MI .OH INE-MAN; THE VAPOR BATH.

How THE INDIANS TREATED THEIR DEAD.
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TllKKK Wl>\<; IIH U9 \l'.l I THE l\l>l\N->.

Ho\v TIM; WIIITI: M\\ CHANGED TIM: INDINN'^ I.IKI;.

1I()U CONTACT WITH INDIAN LIFE CIIAMil.I) TIM. \\IIMI. \1VV.

TO THE PUPIL

1. Describe an imaginary visit to an Indian wigwam.
2. Tell how the Indian cooked and ate his food.

3. What was the work of the Indian brave?

4. What was the squaw's work? Tell how she took care of the

little pappoose.

5. In what ways did the life of an Indian boy differ from yours?
Which do you like better? Give reasons for your answer.

6. Form a mental picture of an Indian war dance, and describe the

picture.

7. What is meant by running the gauntlet ?

8. What was the Indian belief about good and bad spirits?

9. Of what use was the medicine-man to the Indians?

10. How did the Indians treat the bodies of their dead?

11. In what ways did the white man change the life of the Indian?

12. How did contact with Indian life modify the life of the white man?



HERNANDO CORTEZ

CORTEZ SAILS FOR THE NEW WORLD

TWELVE years after Columbus had made his

first voyage, a young man of nineteen sailed for the

New World. Like the men who sailed with Colum-

bus, he Avas filled with a desire to get the gold and

the precious stones that they believed could be

found in the new land. This young man was Her-

nando Cortez.

He was born in Spain in 1485. His parents

were by no means rich, yet they were not poor.

As a boy he was sickly, and cared very little for

his studies. He was idle, wilful, and disobedient,

but he had energy, and hoped some day to become

a soldier.

Such an idle, restless youth often makes trouble

for himself and for his parents. This was .true of

Hernando Cortez. Hence, his father readily con-

sented that the boy should give up a life of useless

frolic at home and risk the dangers of sailing to

unknown shores. In 1504, therefore, Hernando
52
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said good-by to home and friends and started out

in search of adventure in the New World. After

a stormy voyage, the youth of nineteen landed at

Hispaniola.*

The next few years of his life do not especially

concern us. There is nothing of great interest to

record. But some years after reaching the Xew
/

World he joined a successful expedition to Cuba.

In the stirring events of that expedition lie eagerly

took part. He was now twenty-six years of age,

was active and fearless, and he made many friends

among the soldiers.

After the conquest of Cuba, Cortez remained

on the island, where he lived on a large plantation

that the governor had granted him. He also be-

came the owner of some gold mines. Being a good

manager, he made, in a few years, a large sum of

money./

But he was something more than a mere money-
/

maker. He was a leader of men, and soon became

the centre of a group of Spaniards who were dis-

pleased with the governor for not giving them the

lands and honors that they believecl they ought to

have. These men laid a plot against the governor,

* Now called Santo Domingo.
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who found it out and ordered Cortez to be seized

and thrown into prison.

When, soon after this, Cortez managed to es-

cape, the governor again had him put in chains.

This time he was taken on board a vessel in order

that he might be carried to Hispaniola for trial.

Before the vessel could sail, however, one dark

night Cortez threw off his chains, jumped into a

boat, and rowed with all his might for the shore.

lie found himself in great peril, for the current

was strong and he could not control his boat.

Plunging into the rushing waters, he swam with

desperate energy for the shore, and though the

struggle was severe he succeeded in reaching it and

returned to his plantation.

After this second perilous escape the governor

gave Cortez his freedom. Such force and daring

won admiration and caused men to look to Cortez

for leadership. He won back the good-will of the

governor and soon numbered among his friends

men of much power in Cuba. When, therefore, a

suitable man was needed to take command of an

expedition to Mexico, the governor chose Cortez.

The choice proved a wise one, as Cortez furnished

a large sum of money for fitting out the expe-



dition, and easily secured strong men to /join his

forces.

Cortez was glad to go to Mexico, because he

not only hoped to find wealth, but to teach the na-

tives something about the Christian religion. In

carrying out his purpose be knew be would face

many dangers, but he did not fear them.

In 151 (
.) he landed at Tabasco. Here be met a

beautiful Indian girl, whom be taught to speak

the Spanish language. He called her Marina. She

became fond of him, and after-

ward saved his life many times.

She acted as an interpreter.

Not long after landing, Cor-

te/> built the town of Yera Cru/,

where be bad everything his own

way. Having resigned the com-

mission he received when he

sailed from Cuba, he induced the

people of the new town, who were

the soldiers of his army, to elect

him as their commander, and in

this way indicated that be was no

longer serving under the Spanish

governor. This was a daring Marina
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thing to do, for Cortez well knew that if he now

failed and returned to Cuba he might lose his head

for this act of rebellion.

CORTEZ AND MONTEZUMA

When Montezuma, the ruler of the people of

Mexico, heard that Cortez had landed, he was

greatly troubled, because many years before that

time, according to a story that Montezuma and all

Mexicans believed, a fair-skinned being, called the

Sky God, had been driven out of the country by
the God of Darkness. This Sky God had been a

friend of the Mexicans, and had taught them many
things. When he left them he said:

" Some day I

shall return, and when I do I shall come with men
as fair-skinned as myself, and become ruler of

the country." Montezuma naturally thought that

Cnrte/ was the Sky God, who had returned to

Mexico to be the ruler of the land. Therefore

he said: This white stranger will rob me of my
power."

When Cortez saw the messengers from Monte-
/umu, he told them that he had gifts for their ruler.

These' were an arm-chair, carved and painted, a

crimson cap of cloth, a number of collars, brace-
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lets. ;ii id ornaments of c'lit ^lass. Then, in order to

impress them, Cortc/ reviewed liis army, had the

Revi< v \v tin- ni<-<-< M^ers

cannon fired oil', and the horsemen ride hv. The
mf

messengers \\ere overawed hy wliat they saw. They
had been surprised at the ships, which they called



;,s American Explorers

water-houses, but they were astonished at the horses,

which they greatly feared.

A little later other messengers came from Mon-

tr/iima. They brought gifts of great value

shields, helmets, and various ornaments of gold.

They said that Montezuma thought Cortez should

not try to march to Mexico, because the journey

was full of danger.

CORTEZ MARCHES TO THE CITY OF MEXICO

But Cortez could not be turned from his pur-

pose. His army was small, as he had but four

hundred and fifty men, six small cannon, and fif-
f

teen horses. Yet he was determined to carry out

his plans, no matter how great might be the danger

in his way.

Before setting out he ordered the vessels in

which he had come to be sunk, and in this way he

took away from his soldiers the means of return-

ing to their homes. For he did not feel sure that his

men would be willing to press forward should the

natives defeat them in battle. The soldiers were in

great fear, but Cortez said: "As for me, I have

chosen my part. I will remain while there is one to

bear me company." These bold words pleased the
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soldiers. Mud they shouted: '()u to Mexico! On

to Mexico!
'

"On to Mexico"

At the beginning of his march, Cortcz found

a lar<'e trihe of natives who were enemies of A/tecs,

MS Monte/uniM and his people called themselves.
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This tribe also was at first unfriendly to Cortez.

ISut like the other natives, they feared the horses,

and had the feeling that Cortez was the Sky God,

who had returned to rule over the country.

Nevertheless they made ready to fight him, and

soon began an attack upon his forces. For two

days a bloody battle raged. When the dead bodies

of the natives covered the ground, other warriors

just as brave pressed forward to take the places

of their fallen comrades. It was hard for the small

band of Spaniards to stand up against such large

numbers, but they did, and at last won a complete

victory.

Then the natives decided to attack the Span-
iards by night, because they thought that the Span-

iards, if children of the sun, must get their strength

from the sun. But the night attack failed. Cortez

won another victory, and a little later continued

his march.

During this campaign Cortez was equal to

every demand that was made upon him. He was

a man of unusual energy and ability, although
t he-re was nothing in his appearance to indicate his

n-inarkable gifts. He was not large, but he had
l>n>a<l shoulders and a deep chest. His beard was
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dark and thin, his hair long, his complexion pair, his

eyes large and dark, and his face serious. lie- was

always careful in his dress, and generally wore a

large diamond ring. I Ie habitually ale Hie simplest

food, and hore hardships with iron endurance.

His courage gave strength to his men. So far

from their homes, they felt that they might never

sec- them again. On they marched, however, day

after day, until at last thev saw in the distance
* .'

the' ohjecl of their search- -the City of Mexico.

When they first looked upon this city they were

astonished hv its heautv and grandeur. It stood
*. / c^

in a salt lake, with three causeways, built of solid

masonry and from twenty to thirty feet wide, lead-

ing to it. As the Spaniards marched along these

causeways, on their approach to the city, their eyes

fell upon beautiful floating islands. The cause-

ways themselves extended into the city, where they

met in a great square, containing the temple. Some

of the streets consisted of canals, along which

canoes were passing to and fro. To the Spanish

soldiers, what they saw seemed like a dream.
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COltTEZ SEIZES MONTEZUMA

The Aztec military leader and priest, Monte-

zuma, lived in much pomp and splendor in the City

of Mexico. But, as we have seen, he had been

frightened hy the coming of the Spaniards, and

by the stories of their wonderful deeds. He was

now ready to believe that the Sky God had re-

turned, and that he himself must lay down his

sceptre.

On hearing that the Spaniards were in the val-

ley, he sent, according to some accounts, four cart-

loads of gold to Cortez, and one for each of the

Spanish captains, and then, in his despair, shut

himself up in his palace and refused food. Here

he called a council, at which he declared, It is of

no use to fight against the stranger; the gods are

against me."

At last, after much hesitation as to what he

should do, Montezuma, borne along in a palanquin

of burnished gold, went out to meet the Spanish
commander. His cloak and sandals with golden
soles shone brightly with pearls and precious stones.

He was forty years old, tall, slender, with straight

black hair and thin beard, but he had dignity, and,
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standing in tin- presence <>f tlic Spanish leader and

his soldiers, he hore himself like a kin**
1

.

( )nly a formal exchange of courtesies took place

at this meeting, at the- close of which Montezuma's

'#'' -^ V
""' ^ ' T 1 .'/J

The meeting U'hvrrn C^rtez and Montr/.miia

lirother conducted the Spaniards to the quarters

provided for them. Montezuma himself again en-

tered his palanquin, and was carried in state to his

palace. You will remember that the Spanish army
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was small, but the tribes that first fought Cortez

had become his friends, and over six thousand of

these Indians had joined his army.

Montezuma furnished suitable quarters for

t linn all. The Spaniards were given a palace which

had been built and occupied by the father of Monte-

/uma. The allies were probably in the outbuildings

and courtyard.

After the Spaniards had eaten and rested, visits

were exchanged between Montezuma and Cortez,

> I arina acting as an interpreter. Although every-

body seemed to be friendly, Cortez well knew that

he was in great danger. To meet the situation he

quickly worked out a plan. He had learned that

the natives could not fight after losing their chief.

lie therefore decided upon a bold course, and that

was to seize Montezuma and compel this priest-

ruler to come and live in the house which the

Spaniards occupied.

For this act he soon found an excuse. He ac-

cused Montezuma of causing the death of several

Spanish soldiers who had been killed at Vera Cruz.

Montezuma denied the charge. Cortez replied:

You must come and stay with me until I find

out the truth about this matter." Montezuma had
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to do as Cortez told him, although he was quite

unwilling to suhinit to such a disgrace.

\\'hen he readied the house in which the Span-

iards were staying he was treated with great re-

spect and honor. lie was allowed to worship in

the Mexican temple, and to hunt in his forests. A
little later, however, he was compelled to say that

he would obey the King of Spain. To him this

was a great disgrace. When he uttered the words

lie was so overcome with grief that even the Span-

ish soldiers shed tears.

A FURIOUS BATTLE

Not long after Montezuma was captured and

forced to live in the Spanish quarters Cortez

went to Vera Cruz, to meet a body of .Spaniards

that were sent out by the Governor of Cuba to

sei/e him for his act of rebellion at that town.

Corte/ soon defeated these troops, which were under

the command of Xarvaez. But while he was ab-

sent his lieutenant, Alverado, got into trouble. lie

made an attack upon the Aztecs during the May
festival held in honor of their war-god. The Az-

tecs turned upon the Spaniards, and made a frantic

attack upon their quarters. The lighting was furi-
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OILS, and many of the Spaniards lost their lives.

To C'orte/ the bloodshed seemed needless, and there-

fore', on his return, he severely rebuked Alverado.

lie said to him:
" You have done badly. You have

Urn false to your trust. You have acted like a

madman."

The Mexicans now felt so bitter toward the

Spaniards that they again attacked them. The

slaughter was fearful. Although the Spanish can-

non mowed down the Aztecs by scores and hun-

dreds, they still fought on. Finally Cortez re-

quested Montezuma to go out on the wall of the

building, in order to stop the fighting.

Montezuma at first refused, but finally con-

sented. Dressed in all the splendor befitting his

high office, and attended by Mexican nobles and

a Spanish guard, he appeared in the central turret

of the building that the Spaniards occupied.

As soon as the Aztec warriors caught sight of

him a death-like stillness fell upon the mighty

throng. Some of the Mexicans threw themselves

Hat upon the earth and others dropped upon their

knees as a token of reverence. Seeing this, Monte-

/nma calmly spoke as follows:
"
Why are my peo-

ple I u re? I am not a prisoner, as you think, but
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these1 white strangers are my guests. I am now

with them because 1 prefer to he, and can return

The (k-ath of Montr/lima

to my home when I wish. You need not try to

drive them from the city, for they are willing to
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depart if you will not oppose their going. Put

aside your arms and return to your homes in peace."

The Mexicans listened in silence until Monte-

zuma called the Spaniards his guests. At this there

was a murmur, and then an angry outburst, from

the Aztec warriors, who had already chosen another

leader. They leaped to their feet and shouted:

Base Aztec! Woman! Coward!
'

In their ex-

citement they hurled stones at him and struck him

down.

Montezuma was quickly carried back to his

apartments, feeling that he was deserted by his

people, and that there was nothing left for him

to live for. He refused all medical aid, tore off

bandages that were placed about his wounds, and

died in a few days.

Although Cortez had returned from Vera Cruz

with twelve hundred more Spaniards, he now felt

that he must leave the city in order to save himself

and his soldiers. Quickly getting his forces ready,

therefore, he began his famous retreat. While

withdrawing his army, he fought a hand-to-hand

battle, which continued through the night. It was
a desperate struggle. The Spaniards had to cut

their way through the thousands of angry Mexi-
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cans that seemed determined to deslrov the entire

Spanish (orce. Cortcz sueeeeded at last in making
his escape, but he lost a large part of his men.

This loss he felt so keenly that when he got to a

place of safety he sat down and wept.

CORTEZ CONQUERS MEXICO

A little later Cortez and his Indian allies re-

turned and laid siege to Mexico. For five months

the fierce struggle lasted. Even after the supply

of fresh water was cut off from Mexico, the Aztecs

refused to surrender. And they stubbornly fought

on until most of the city lay in ruins, when they

gave up.

Some years after the capture of the city, Cortez

tried to discover a strait which was thought to con-

nect the Atlantic and the Pacific oceans, but he

had to return to Mexico, to settle troubles that had

arisen there.

Other troubles, however, were more serious to

him. lie had enemies in Spain, and they said so

many harsh things about him that lie returned to

his native land to speak for himself. When he

readied Spain he was received with the greatest

honor, and was made Captain-General of Xew
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Spain, but he was not allowed to return to Mexico

as a man of authority.

He afterward made himself poor by fitting out

another exploring expedition,* and he again re-

turned to Spain, in 1540. This time he was coolly

received. Seven years later he died, at the age of

sixty-two, a disappointed man, but his name will

live in history as the Conqueror of Mexico.

OUTLINE FOR ORAL AND WRITTEN LANGUAGE

THE BOYHOOD OF CORTEZ.

I I is LIFE IN CUBA.

CORTEZ IN CHAINS; HIS ESCAPE.

Hi: HEADS AN EXPEDITION TO MEXICO.

HlS MEETING WITH MARINA.

Hi: BUILDS THE TOWN OF VERA CRUZ.

MoNTEZUMA AND THE SKY Gob.

MKSSENGERS BRING GIFTS FROM MONTEZUMA TO CORTEZ.

Tin: LITTLE SPANISH ARMY.

('nidi:/ SINKS HIS VESSELS AND BEGINS HIS MARCH.

A HLOODY BATTLE WITH THE NATIVES.

Till: NIGHT ATTACK.

l'i:uso\AL APPEARANCE OF CORTEZ.

Tin: SPANIARDS APPROACH THE CITY OF MEXICO.

MONTK/TMA'S i KHIHT AT THE COMING OF THE SPANIARDS.

Ill- I'l.USONAL APPEARANCE.

* In OIK- of ilicsc expeditions along the Pacific coast he discovered the

|n-niii-nl;i of ( 'alifomia.
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( 'OKTI ./. M i/i> MONTI. /i MA.

Tin: AZTECS' FRANTIC ATTACK i PON THK SI-ANT A K us.

A SECOND ATTA4 K.

MON IT./.I M \'s SPEECH.

Tin-: A/TT.C UAKKIOI;> >II;IKI: HIM DOWN.

Ills m.vril.

'I'm: Si- \NIMI KI.I REA i .

COIMT:/ CAI-II RES im: dn 01- MKMCO.

TO THE PUPIL

1. Do you think you would have liked young Hernando Cortez for a

playmate?
2. Who was the Sky God and what connection did Cortez have with

him?

3. What do you think of Montezuma's action in shutting himself

within the palace?

4. Why did Cortez seize Montezuma? What did he do with him?

5. Why did the Aztec warriors hurl stones at Montezuma?
6. Can you form a mental picture of Montezuma? Of Cortez?

7. Is there anything you admire in either of these men? If so, what
is it?
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PIZARRO GOES TO THE THE NEW WORLD

NOT many years after the conquest of Mexico

by Cortez, another Spaniard, equally daring, car-

ried on a similar campaign against the Incas of

Peru. This soldier, who made his name famous,

was Francisco Pizarro. He was born in Spain

about 1470. His father was a well-to-do officer of

good family, and it is said that young Pizarro

served with him as a mere lad in the Italian wars.

The boy learned nothing at school. He could never

read, nor could he even write his own name. Al-

though he might have been something much better,

he was probably a swineherd, and when he started

out to make his way in life he owned nothing but

his sword and cloak.

In 1509, at the age of thirty-nine, we find him

in the New World. For the next fifteen years he

followed a soldier's life, the dangers of which suited

him well, for he had great courage and patience.
72



During this time IK- served under Balboa* and was

with him when that commander discovered the

Pacific Ocean.

When Panama was founded, in 1 .)!<.), Pi/arro

was one of four hundred settlers who received land

there. For the next few years he- led an industrious

lii'e. lie spent his time in raising cattle, and thus

made the money with which later he fitted out an
/

expedition to Peru.

Already there had been one expedition to Peru,

which was unsuccessful. Hut in spite of that fail-

ure new stories of the wealth of the country led to

other attempts to conquer it.

PIZAKRO SAILS FOR PERU

In 1,5*24 Pizarro, with two partners, made an

unsuccessful expedition, but two years later they

tried again. This time Pi/arro landed at the San

Juan Kiyer with most of his men, sending one ship

hack for provisions and the other farther south to

explore. lie himself undertook by long marches

through the densely wooded region to find a suit-

able place to cam]). But many of his men were

* Ball><>a Uncovered tin- Pacific Ocean in 1.513.
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stricken with fever, and they were obliged to go

hack to the- coast.

Both ships returned, the one with provisions

and the other with information of the land to the

south. All embarked with the hope of forming a

settlement there. But they were not a strong com-

pany.

After suffering greatly from disease and hun-

ger, Pi/arn> sent to Panama for more soldiers and

food. But some of his men were discouraged and,

without his knowledge, got word to the Governor

of Panama that things were not as they should be.

Hence, the governor, instead of sending men and

provisions to help Pizarro, sent ships, with orders

to bring him back with his men.

When the ships arrived, Pizarro refused to re-

turn. He took his sword, and with its point drew
an east and west line upon the sandy beach. He
said to his men: "North of this line lie ease and

safety; south of it lie danger and glory. Let each
man choose for himself." Sixteen chose to remain
with Pi/urro.

They soon built a raft, upon which they made
*eir way to the island of Gallo. Here they suf-
IVml

lordships. For seven months they lived on
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shelT-fish, with an occasional hird which they mi^ht

happen to kill.

'

" North of this line lie ease and safety
"

Finally a small ship from Panama came to

their aid. In this they sailed south to the city <>f
*

Tumbez, in Pern, where the natives were friendly.

They allowed the Spanish soldiers to enter the

city and take hack a re-port to Pi/arro. Pi/arm,
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on his part, scut to the chief some swine and fowls

which had come with the ship from Panama. The

chic I' was greatly astonished at the strange animals.

Pi/arro now returned to Panama, carrying re-

ports of the wonderful city, with its palace, temple,

and figures of men and animals made of gold. He
look with him llamas, fine woollen garments, and

vases of gold and silver. He then decided to re-

turn to Spain, where for all that he had done he

was made Captain-General of Peru. In 1530

he went hack to the New World with his four

hrothers and a small band of followers.

The next year Pizarro again sailed for Peru

witli two hundred men and fifty horses, and a few

months later landed at Tumhez.

Soon after landing he hegan to march toward

1 1 ic city where the ruler of Peru dwelt. This ruler

was called the Inca. It seems likely that he had

as much power over the people of Peru as Monte-

/uma had over the Aztecs in Mexico when Cortez

reached that city.

PIZARRO AND THE INCA

When the Inca learned of the approach of the

Spaniards he sent messengers to Pizarro, with gifts



/
f

/Y/mv'.srr> I'rjirro 77

and words of welcome. You will remember that

JVIontezuma and the people of Mexico were greatly

disturbed by the coming of the' fair-faced strangers,

Cork"/ and his soldiers. In the same wav the Inca
*

and his people were- afraid of these white men,

riding upon strange, unheard-of creatures, the

horses, and firing their guns, which the natives

thought were thunder-holts. Indeed, these new-

comers were everywhere looked upon with awe

and fear. On meeting Pi/arro the messengers

called him the son of the Sky God, because they

thought he was not a human being like themselves.

Pi/arro did not tell them they were wroim1

. lie
+> C2

merelv said that he was a friend of the Inca and

his people.

Proceeding on his way, Pizarro arrived, on

November 15th, at the city of Caxamarca, and en-

tered it with his small army. He at once sent De

Soto, a gallant cavalier and trusted captain, with

thirty-five horsemen, to invite the Inca to visit him.

De Soto found the Inca surrounded by chiefs
w

and female slaves, all of whom were terrified by
the horses. At this the Inca was so displeased that

he had some of his men put to death because they

showed signs of great fear. The next day the
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1 iicu irt m-ned tlic visit of Pizarro. His attendants

wore (|iiilted
cotton doublets, and carried their

\\ capons, which included lances and copper-headed

dubs, hows, slings, and lassos.
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His people .were afraid of the horses

\Vlirn Pi/niTo saw the size of the Inca's army
IK- IV It that his small body of men was in serious

danger, He and all his men feared that their

" ltit>( force might be overwhelmed if the enemy
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sliould attack tlicni. Hrave as lie was, lie probably

slept but little that ni^lil, and it is more than

likely that the Spaniards believed that the next

dav would he their last.

The Inea was roughly handle.!

Hut Pi/arro ^avc no si^ns of fear. Tie con-

cealed his men in the houses of Caxamarca, and

sent a ]>riest to meet the Inca. When the Inca

approached, the priest began to address him \\ith

a long speech, and told him that he must pay tribute
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to the Spanish king, must believe in Christ, and

must give up the worship of idols.

The Inca did not know what to make of the

strange words and manners of the priest. When,

therefore, a Bible was handed to him, he threw it

upon the ground. As soon as he did this, at a

given signal the Spanish soldiers rushed from the

houses, seized the Inca, and for two hours cut down

his followers.

In the struggle the Inca was handled roughly,

and finally made a prisoner. With their leader in

the hands of the Spaniards, the poor natives were

bewildered and helpless.

PIZARRO PUTS THE INCA TO DEATH

The Inca was told that he must submit to

the King of Spain. He was confined in a room

twenty-two feet long and seventeen feet wide.

Reaching as high as he could, he made a mark upon
the wall, and told Pizarro that he would fill the

room with gold up to that mark if Pizarro would

set him free. The crafty Spanish leader agreed
to do so.

At once messengers hastened to various parts
of Peru, and the natives began to bring the prom-



HI

ised gold. For six months they continued to bring

vast quantities of gold and silver, in the form of

vases, tablets, ornaments, and bullion. The Span-

Tlie Inca made a mark upon the wall

ish soldiers were sent to hasten the work, and wher-

ever thev went they were so rough and cruel thatc*

they aroused the fierce hatred of the natives. Fi-

nally, in June, 1.5.'W, the promised gold was got
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together, and was equal to what would now be

worth fifteen million dollars.

With the possession of so much treasure the

grasping Spaniards were, of course, overjoyed, and

for a time they seem to have treated the Inca with

kindness. They taught him how to speak their

language, and how to play chess and games with

dice. But a little later stories began to reach

Pizarro that the Inca was secretly having an army

brought together. This gave an excuse for accus-

ing him of plotting to destroy the little Spanish

army. The Inca denied that he cherished any hos-

tile plans. When, however, many reports came
to Pizarro that an army was nearing the city, he

decided to bring the Inca to trial. This was a mere

pretext for putting him out of the way.

Knowing that he was surrounded by over-

whelming numbers of enemies, Pizarro thought it

necessary to show his power. He therefore brought
the Inca to trial and condemned him to be burned
to death unless he declared his belief in Christ. This
1" did, but nevertheless on August 29th he was
si nmgled with a bowstring.

Up to the last moment the bearing of the Inca
was calm and dignified. He did not seem to for-
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et that IK- was a king, and like- a king lie died.
c"> **

To the last lie ileelared that he was unjustly treated,

and that Pizarro had not kept his word.

At the time of his execution the Inea was only

thirty years old. lie was a large, handsome man,

<i'av in manner, although often wearing a look ofD

cruelty, and he governed his people with great ubil-

ity. His rule was, without doubt, severe, but lie

had done nothing which in the least excuses Pizarro

for putting him to death.

LATER YEARS OF 1'IZAKKO

Pizarro now marched upon Cuzco, the capital

of Peru, and there appointed a new Inca to take

the place of the one he had cruelly murdered.

lie had succeeded in his purpose. lie had con-

quered Peru. When the news of his conquest

reached Spain, he was made a marquis.

His success with so small a number of men

surprises us, but we must not forget that the na-

tives thought he was the son of the Sky God, and

that it was therefore useless to oppose him. They
also m-eatlv feared the horses.

*

In Cu/co, Pizarro seized the palaces and public

buildings for himself and his followers. lie pulled
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down idols in the temples and turned the Temple
of the Sun into a monastery. It is said that he

The death of Pizarro

found in this city golden statues of women as large
as hfe. The Spaniards were astonished at the
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beauty and grandeur of the city, but, for commer-

cial purposes, Pi/arm preferred to have his capital

near tlie coast. lie therefore built a new city, which

lie called Lima. But his difficulties were not over.

There was trouble between him and one of his for-

mer partners, and his cruel treatment of the people

of Peru had made enemies of them.

Finally, several years after he had conquered

Peru, some of the Spaniards became so embit-

tered toward him that they determined to kill him.
/

One day, at noon, while he was at dinner, nine-

teen of them, heavily armed, entered the palace.

They took him by surprise, but he quickly seized

a spear and, although now an old man, past seventy

years of age, he fought like a lion, cutting down

man after man in the desperate struggle.

At last they overcame him and he fell. Making/ c~t

a cross on the floor, he kissed it and breathed his

last. His enemies shouted,
' The tyrant is dead!

'

Thus died Francisco Pizarro, the Spanish con-

queror of Peru.

OUTLINE FOR ORAL AND ^yRITTEN LANGUAGE

BOYHOOD OF FRANCISCO PI/ARRO.

PIZARRO AT PANAMA.
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Hi BAILS i OK PERU.

His i;i I I SAL TO RETURN TO PANAMA.

A TRYING EXPERIENCE ON THE ISLAND OF GALLO.

Pl/.VUUo's VARIOUS JOURNEYS AND FINAL RETURN TO THE NEW
WORLD.

THE INCA AND THE NATIVES FEAR THE SPANIARDS.

l'i/\ui;<> I.KACHES CAXAMARCA.

'I'HE INCA VISITS PIZARRO.

MI;I;TI\<; METWEEN THE INCA AND THE PRIEST.

'I'm: SPANIARDS CONFINE THE INCA IN A ROOM.

Ill AGREES TO BUY HIS FREEDOM.

1'l/AHKO HAS HIM BURNED TO DEATH.

THE INCA AS A MAN AND A RULER.

I'l/ARRO CONQUERS PERU AND BUILDS LlMA.

His DEATH AT THE HANDS OF HIS FOLLOWERS.

TO THE PUPIL

1. Imagine yourself with Pizarro on the island of Gallo and tell

about your life there.

2. Picture the meeting between Pizarro and the Inca at Caxamarca,
and tell what happened.

3. What promise did Pizarro make the Inca? In what way did he
break it ?

4. What do you think of Pizarro's treatment of the Inca?
5. Can you imagine how each of these men looked? What do you

think of them?
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PONCE 1)E LEON

ANOTHER wandering soldier of fortune was

Ponce de Leon. A few years before Balboa dis-
v

covered the Pacific Ocean this Spanish explorer,

after spending some time in subduing the Indians,

was made Governor of Porto Rico. His health

was broken, and he suffered from wounds he had

received in fighting the natives.

He heard that in an island not far away to the

north was a Fountain of Youth. He longed to

drink of the waters of this fountain, believing they

would heal all his diseases and make him voim^/ I?

again. He therefore sought and obtained from the

King permission to explore and conquer the island

containing this Fountain of Youth.

In due time, therefore, he set sail from Porto

Rico, and on Kaster Day, 1513, reached land. He
named the country Florida. Very soon he and his

men started in search of the fountain. But they
87
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searched in vain, and after sailing along the coast

from point to point they returned to Porto Rico.

Ponce de Leon searching for the Fountain of Youth

Several years later De Leon sailed again to

Florida, in order to plant a colony. But he did
not succeed. He was attacked by Indians, one of
whom shot him with a poisoned arrow. He re-

turned to Cuba, to die from the wound.
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I'ANFILO l)i: NAKVAKZ

Another Spaniard who sought for gold in Flor-

ida was Panfilo de Xarvae/. It was this man who

was sent to Mexico to take the- place of Cork"/.

Von may remember tliat Cork 1 / went to the coast
*

and defeated Xarvae/, and that during C'ortc//s

al)senc'c his lieutenants attacked the A/tecs.

Of course Xarvae/ was eager to find riches.

lie therefore obtained permission to conquer the

country extending along the Gulf of Mexico to

Florida.

In 1,5*27 be sailed from Spain with four hundred

men, and landed on the coast of Florida. lie

marched inland with three hundred followers, leav-

ing the other hundred in the vessels to follow the

coast. But he did not make any definite plans

about the place where be would meet them later.

A Her he and his men bad endured much suffer-

ing, they returned to the coast and spent a month

in marching to the west. They searched and
/

searched for the vessels, but could not find them

anvwbcrc. They did find hostile Indians, however.
* *

who were bent upon destroying the white- strangers.. o o

The Spaniards were in a dangerous situation.
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It was hard to know what they could do, but they

soon set to work to build boats. Being without

food, they killed and ate their horses one by one,

Sewed their shirts together to make sails

and with the manes and tails made ropes. They
also sewed their shirts together to make sails.

In time they built five frail boats, in which
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they sailed with a scant supply of food and water.

But if the provisions were light, the human freight

was heavy, nearly fifty men being huddled together

in each boat. For six weeks the company paddled

along
1 the coast, nearly famished and suffering

greatly from lack of fresh water, for they soon

exhausted the supply they carried with them in

hags made from the horses' skins.

At last they reached the mouth of the Missis-

sippi River, where they met with a storm. Two of

the boats, one of them containing Xarvaez, were

upset and lost. The other three were cast on the

shore, where the Spaniards were left to the mercy
of the Indians. Only four of the men escaped

alive, Cabeza de Vaca, who was the treasurer of

the expedition, two other Spaniards, and a negro

called Little Steve.

After wandering about separately among dif-

ferent tribes, these four men finally came together

in the same tribe. They made the Indians believe
/

that they were medicine-men, and in this way pro-

tected their lives and at the same time gained power
over the Indians. They also induced the Indians,

in their wanderings, to move in the direction thev

wished to go themselves, which was toward the Pa-
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cific coast. At last they reached the Gulf of Cali-

fornia, and then went south until they came upon
a Mexican settlement. They had travelled more

Left to the mercy of the Indians

than two thousand miles, and for the first time in

eight years found themselves with friends. Later

they returned to Spain. The reports which they
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carried hack slinvd the ambition of other advrnl-

mvrs, hut they thrmsclvc's took no 1'urllKT part in

exploring the- Xi'\\ \\'orld.

OITUM; r<m OKAL AND \vmTn-:\ LANGUAGE

Di. LEON IN 8EARC1 HE IMH \T\IN < Y.H in.

III. NAMES mi M.\\ CO1 NTK\ r'l.oKiD \.

Ill IS Ml. I. Ill) m \ !( )iso\ I.D Alflit >\\ .

NAI;\\I/ LANDS >\ Till-: COAST <M IM.UI;I n v.

Hi: MAKES \ M-:moi s MISTAKE.

Till: Sr\\l\i;n^ IN \ DANGEROUS SITUATION.

Till. 1

) 1:1 II. n FRAIL l:i> \ l 8.

A -n>KM AT -I \.

Tin. \\ INDERINGS OF CABEZA DE VACA AND HIS THREE COMPANIONS

TO THE PUPIL

1. Imagine yourself with De Leon in search of the Fountain of

Youth, and try to form definite pictures of what took place.

2. Go in imagination with Cabeza de Vaca and his three compan-
ions and tell what happened.
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DE SOTO PLANS TO CONQUER FLORIDA

As one explorer after another returned with

glowing accounts of their adventures, the belief

quickly spread that the newly discovered countries

were the richest in the world. Men were eager to

try their fortunes, and each new explorer hoped

to surpass the last in getting wealth and gold.

Among this eager number was Hernando de Soto.

He was born about 1500, of a noble but poor

family. As a boy he excelled in sports and games,

and later became a good horseman and skilful

swordsman.

It was natural that a young fellow of his tastes

should wish for adventure in distant lands. He
had been with Pizarro in the expedition to Peru,

and in the conquest of that country he was one

of Pizarro's trusted captains. It was he that

arrested the Inca. He also shared in the ransom
of fifteen million dollars that the Inca brought to-

gether for the use of the Spaniards, but he had
94



Hernando dc Solo

no part in putting the Inca to death. From this

expedition lie had returned to Spain with great

wealth and honor.

Hopeful of finding another land as rich as

Peru and Mexico, lie asked the King of Spain to

make him Governor of Cuha. This the King did,

and also granted him permission to conquer and

settle Florida.

De Soto easily found men to join his expedition.

Caheza de Vaca, who recently had returned from
/

Florida, had told such marvellous stories about the

new land that many well-to-do people in Spain

were ready to engage in the enterprise. Men sold

houses and lands, and, in fact, all that they had,

in order to go.

A brilliant body of men, therefore, soon gath-

ered about De Soto as their leader. There were

six hundred in all, including gay nobles and vet-

erans of war. This company, richly dressed and

with abundant provisions, sailed to Cuba in April,

1538. After reaching the island in safety and es-

tablishing a settlement, De Soto left his wife there

to govern the colony in his absence. He himself,

with five hundred and seventy men and two hun-

dred and twenty-three horses, embarked for Flor-
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Ida. After a voyage of about two weeks, they

landed on the west coast, in May, 1539. The com-

pany be^an their march fully armed. They had

supplied themselves with all necessary things which

liu- experience of former expeditions could suggest

all kinds of weapons, chains for captives, a drove

of hogs for food, and even priests and ornaments

for mass.

DE SOTO AND HIS MEN IN TROUBLE

But soon after landing, their troubles began.

The journey was full of danger and the Indians

hostile. From the start De Soto treated them

cruelly, for he did not respect their rights or their

property. Everywhere he demanded corn of the

chiefs, and forced both braves and squaws to carry

the baggage and do the menial work. On leaving

an Indian town, it was his custom to compel its

chief to go with him, not releasing him until they

reached the next town.

The Indians whom he used as porters and

guides were even less fortunate. They were mostly

put to death or enslaved. Many of them were in

chains, and had iron collars about their necks. De
Solo had no feeling for their suffering and took
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pleasure in putting* them to death. lie thought

only of the gold for which lie was searching, and

was always demanding that the Indian guides

should tell him where it could he found.

\^Y^
^Y*' v ;

J&2.
r^St' f .'" / ',-Wii^kX'// /, I A-" ^,'

r

The chief's daughter begged her father to set him free

Not long after landing in Florida he was joined

by Ortiz, one of the men who belonged to Xarvaez's

force. This man had been captured by the Indians,

who were going to kill him. But just as they were
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about to put him to death, the chief's daughter

I x. <>(>((! her father to set him free. The chief
i^~> i*^

granted her request, and spared his life. For the

next few years Ortiz lived with the Indians, and
'

became like them in his dress and manner of life.

Hi- was therefore helpful to De Soto just as

Marina was helpful to Cortez in dealing with

Indian chiefs in Mexico.

Hut Ortiz had very little knowledge of the

country, and could not aid De Soto much in that

way. Indeed, De Soto's troubles seemed daily to

increase. There were no roads, and the Spaniards

had to make their way through lakes and streams

and marshes, through dense woods and tangled

underbrush, following when they could the trails

of the Indians or of wild beasts. The soldiers suf-

IV red from hunger, for they had little meat or

salt, and had constantly to fight with the Indians.

The woods seemed full of these dusky warriors,

and often the Spaniards could advance only by

fighting them every step of the way.
After a while the men implored De Soto to

return, but he was stubborn. When once he made

up hi* mind about what to do, no one could move
him from his purpose. Like Cortez, when he



Ilcrnaudo dc Solo

landed lie- had cut off from his men all probable

chance of return. lie had not sunk his boats, as

Cortez had done, but he had sent the largest of

them back to Cuba, and those that remained were

not such as to tempt a wary seaman to venture

far from the shore.

THE INDIAN PRINCESS

Trusting to the tale of an Indian, that there

was a country rich in gold and precious stones

lying to the northeast, he moved in that direction.
<r*

As he advanced he met more natives, from whom
lie received corn and grain, lint he did not receive

enough to satisfy the suffering soldiers, and they

threatened even these more friendly Indians with

their usual cruelty. In the course of this march
V

they reached the province of an Indian princess,

who came across the river (probably the Savannah)

in a canopied canoe to greet them. When she

landed, with great ceremony she was borne on a

litter by her followers into the presence of the

Spanish commander. Then she presented him with

gifts of shawls and skins, and took from her neck

a pearl chain and placed it around his. This she

did as a sign of her submission to him.
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But, far from appreciating her kindness or her

gifts, he kept her as a prisoner, compelling her to

inarch on foot with his men. This same cruel con-

duct hecame his habit in the treatment of chiefs

who met him courteously and offered him gifts and

service at various places on the line of march.

A BLOODY BATTLE WITH THE INDIANS

On one occasion De Soto reached a town the

ruler of which was a giant chief. As De Soto

approached him, the chief sat upon cushions on

a raised platform. He was surrounded by his fol-

lowers, some of whom held over his head a buck-

skin umbrella stained in red and white. With a

quiet dignity that should have won the respect of

the white men the Indian chief awaited the ap-

proach of the Spanish horsemen, whose prancing
steeds did not disturb his calmness of manner. But
this reception seemed to make no impression upon
De Soto, who, according to his custom, compelled
this chief to supply him with a quantity of food,
and to go with him to the next town. On reach-

in-- it, he was met by its chief with a body of fol-

lowers playing on musical instruments.

After the chief had offered De Soto fur robes
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as gifts in token of his good-will, De Soto, with

about twelve Spaniards, entered the gates of the

palisaded town in company with the two chiefs.

When they were inside the gates, the giant chief

who had been forced to come with De Soto asked

that he might return to his own people. De Soto

refused. The chief then entered an Indian house,

saving
1 that he wished to talk with some of the

/

other chiefs.

After a little while De Soto summoned him to

return. The chief refused. Another Indian was

told to carry a message to the chief. He refused,

and a Spaniard cut him down where he stood.

At once a large number of Indians rushed out

of the houses near by, and set upon De Soto and

his small guard. The fighting was furious. It was

an exciting moment, and De Soto was in great

danger. In making a desperate effort to escape,

he was struck to the earth two or three times by
the arrows that darkened the air. Five of his men

were killed outright, and several more were capt-

ured. But De Soto succeeded in getting out of

the gate and reaching the main body of his men.

The Spaniards then attacked the town, and a

bloodv battle followed. It was one of the hardest
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ever fought in those early days between the white

men and the red men. The Spaniards at last set

A bloody battle followed

fire to the houses, and by nightfall had killed all

the Indians but three. Two of these were slain
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later, and the- last survivor hauled himself with his

bowstring".

The battle was a serious one for the- while men

also. One hundred and seventv of them were killed
*

or wounded, and most of their clothing, arms, and

supplies were burned. They were now so destitute

that they were obliged to weave lon^ ^rass into

mats for clothing.

DE SOTO DISCOVERS THE MISSISSIPPI KIVEK

They were in a pitiful condition, and the men

longed to return to home and friends, hut l)e

Soto stubbornly refused their appeals. lie was

too proud to return without having done what he

had set out to do.

About the middle of November thev marched

northward, and after a month of ii^htins^ reached

a little Indian town of two hundred houses, built

on a hill, probably on the western bank of the Ya/oo

River. They arrived in a snow-storm about a week

before Christmas. The chief received l)e Soto

graciously, and here 13e Soto and his men remained

until the following March.

When ready to advance. DC Soto demanded

porters of the Indian chief to carry his ba
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The ehiei' gave promises, but instead of keeping

tilt-in lu made a desperate night attack upon the

Spaniards, and set fire to the houses which they

occupied. So sudden was the attack that De Soto

and 01 it- other Spaniard were all that succeeded

in mounting their horses. De Soto killed one Ind-

ian with his spear, but the rest escaped. The Ind-

ians killfd eleven Spaniards, many of the horses,

and also many of the swine. The Spaniards lost

in thf lire most of their remaining clothing, as

wcl 1 as weapons and saddles.

Thf\ were several weeks repairing the loss and

damage of this attack. When they did finally take

up tin 'ir march, late in April, they had to fight their

way through hostile tribes, stopping to make boats

uhfii thf Indians would not give them canoes, suf-

IVring great privations and hardships, and always

.irching for the gold-lands they could never find.

I)< Soto finally reached the banks of the Mis-

sissippi. The Spaniards wondered at the strange
(Mi it contained, and the large trees that it swept
along its current, But they little knew how great
this river ivallv was.

At this point, near Chicasaw Bluff, it was a

" ll|( or more wide, and the Spaniards had no boats
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with which to cross it. They had to spend nearly

a month in building four hoats, each of which was

large enough to carry sixty or seventy men and

five or six horses.

LAST SAD DAYS OF DE SOTO

Once safely across, I)e Soto followed the west

bank of the river north in search of the provinces

said to contain gold. On his way he had oppor-

tunity to observe many strange customs of the

Indians. He found one tribe living in houses made

of mats and frames. But he found no gold. Turn-

ing south he passed large Indian towns, roaming
herds of buffalo, fertile fields of corn, and tribes

of unfriendly Indians. But still there was no gold.

The next winter was long and severe, and the

sufferings of the Spaniards were intense. Ortiz,

the interpreter, was one of the men who died.

De Soto now had to give up all hope of success.

He decided to go to the coast and build ships in

which to send for aid. When he reached the mouth

of the Red River (which flows into the Mississippi)

his force was smaller by two hundred and fifty men/ ,*

than it was when he landed in Florida, about three

years before.
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At this point he met an Indian chief and went

with him as his guest to his palisaded town. Tired,

discouraged, and weakened in body, he soon fell

sick here with a severe fever, and died on the 21st

They lowered it into the black waters of the Mississippi

day of May, 1542. He had selfishly sought riches

and fame, but when he died his only property con-

sisted of five Indian slaves, three horses, and a herd
"(' swine.
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Al'tci 1 llnvr days liis body was buried within

the walls of the town. When the- Indians noticed

tlif place of bis burial, tbcy asked if be were dead.

Mnseoso, wbo was now tbe Spanish commander,

i'eared tbat tbe red men inij'ht attack tliem if tbev

learned of 1 )e Snto's death, and tbercfnre bad

tbe body removed. Tbev wrapped it in blankets,

weighted it witb sand, and in the darkness of mid-

night lowered it into the black waters of the Mis-

sissippi Kiver.

De Soto had come to America to seek wealth

and honor. \Vhat he found was hunger, suffering,

disease, and a grave in the gloomy waters of the

mighty river he had discovered.

OUTLINE FOR ORAL AND WRITTEN LANGUAGE

l)i; SOTO i.v PERT WITH PIZARRO.

SPA M\K i >s I:A<;I:K TO JOIN DE SOTO'S EXPEDITION TO THE \i:\v

WOULD.

His l!i;il.l,l ANT BODY OF FOLLOWERS.

Dl. SOTO ( HIHL TO THE IxDIAXS.

Tin: INDIAN niii:i's i> \i <;irn:u SAVKS THE LIFE OF ORTIZ.

SKUIOUS TROUBLES OF Till: Si' \ N I.VRDS.

DE SOTO'S STI I;I;OI;N KI.I i SAL TO TURN BACK.

Tin: IN 1. 1 \N I'I;INCI;SS.

1 >i SOTO AND TIM: <;IA\T cini i .

Tin: SPANISH LEADKR IAII i;s AN INDIAN TOWN.
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\[\<. I. Hi: IN DANGER.

A Itl.ooDY BATTLE WITH THE INDIANS.

Till. Sl'AMAims WINTER IN AN INDIAN TOWN.

A 1 1 l.si 'I. HATE NIGHT ATTACK.

Tin; Si- \\IAKDS REACH THE MISSISSIPPI.

I )
I Si )TO\S DEATH AND BURIAL.

\\IIAT ML SOUGHT AND WHAT HE FOUND.

TO THE PUPIL

1. In what way did Ortiz help De Soto?

2. What do you think of De Soto's treatment of the Indian princess?
3. Picture to yourself the meeting between De Soto and the giant

chief. Can you describe your picture?

4. Can you think of any good reason why the Spaniards should
have treated the Indians so cruelly?

5. What do you like about De Soto?
6. Name some of his worst faults.



SIR FRANCIS DRAKE

THUS far we have been considering the work

of Spanish explorers. In the time of Columbus,

Cortez, Pizarro, and De Soto, Spain was the most

powerful country in the world. But other nations

also were seeking to reach the Far East by a water-

route. Only five years after Columbus made his
/ */

first voyage, a seacaptain, by the name of John

Cabot, sailed from Bristol, England, straight

across the Atlantic, and landed on the coast of

Labrador.

On his return to England the people paid him

much honor. They called him the Great Admiral,

and he dressed in fine garments made of silk, as

was the custom of great men in those days. The

next year after his return, his son Sebastian made

a voyage to the Ne\v World, and sailed along the

coast from Labrador to Xorth Carolina or farther.

The voyages of the Cabots were made between

the first and the second voyages of Columbus.

These Englishmen, therefore, were the first to dis-
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cover tin- mainland of the new continent. For you

will remember that it was not until his second voy-

.i.., tli.it Columbus reached the mainland.
6

1 1 was nearly a hundred years before other Eng-

lish sailors followed in the path of the Cabots. In

tin meantime Spain was getting vast quantities of

old and silver from Mexico and Peru. Some
~^

people think that the Spaniards took out of those

countries gold and silver that would now be worth

fi\e thousand million dollars.

This gold and silver gave Spain the means of

\\arring with other countries. In this way she

hoped to increase her power in Europe, and Eng-
land was one of the countries which she tried to

bring under her control. With good reason, then,

many Englishmen hated Spain, and no one hated

her more than did Francis Drake. He was an

Englishman whose life was spent almost entirely

on the sea, and for many years he was fighting

against Spain.

r.AKI.Y LIFE OF FRANCIS DRAKE

Horn about 1540, Francis was the eldest of

twelve sons. 1 1 is father was a poor clergyman,
and lived in the town of Plymouth, on the south
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coast of England. Like- Christopher Columbus a

century earlier, this blue-eyed, curly-haired lad en-
*

joyed >'oin>' down to the shore to watch the vessels

1

J i //
'

Drake watching the vessels

lyin^' in the harhor and those sailing far out on

the sea.

Karly in life Francis was apprenticed to a sea-

captain who was the master of a vessel. His life
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at sea, MS lie- sailed to and fro between France and

Holland, was one of hardship. But he must have

home it well, for when his master, the shipowner,

<lil. IK- left his vessel to Francis as a reward for

faithful service. This early hardship also gave him

strength to pass through trials and dangers in his

later years. He was at this time eighteen years

of age.

Heing now the master of a vessel, he returned

to Kngland, and engaged very soon to go with

John Hawkins, a daring sea-captain, on a voyage
to the AVest Indies. Hawkins was attacked by a

Spanish fleet, which overpowered his five vessels.

In this battle he lost all his treasure, and came near

losing his life. From that day Hawkins and Drake

were the bitter enemies of Spain.

DRAKE'S DESIRE TO REACH THE PACIFIC

Drake declared that he would have revenge

upon the Spaniards, and began to make a series of

vroyages with the purpose of capturing all the

Spanish treasure-ships that he could find, and at-

tacking all the Spanish settlements that he could

reach.

one of these voyages he sailed to Panama.
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While there, he marched across the isthmus, and

the natives took him to the top of a hill. Here,

lie climbed up a ^i^antic tree, and from under its

fcl

& ' ~ '- -

i,'; i /.nl ovt-r the vast waters of the Taoific

spreading l>ranehes gazed over the vast waters of

the Pacific. He was the first Englishman to be-

hold this ocean.

Then his eves followed the coast to the north
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MI id to UK- south. He knew that the Spaniards

were cruising there, and that they were taking away

cm Id from Peru. It was therefore his great desire
D

{< reach the Pacific with a ship of his own, and to

carry oil' as much Spanish treasure as he could

sci/c. At last lie was able to realize his wish.

DRAKE'S BITTER EXPERIENCE

In 157(>, by the help of wealthy friends, he ob-

tained command of a fleet of five ships. They were

most handsomely fitted out. Drake's vessel had a
*/

table-service of gold and silver, richly engraved

with the family arms. Musicians played to him

during meals, and at all times a negro attendant

was within easy call. He himself dressed in fine

clothes. All this luxury was intended to show the

greatness of his country.

The fleet sailed early in November, 1577. After

being fifty-four days out of sight of land they
n-ached the coast of Brazil. Skirting the shore as

they sailed south, the sailors could see here and
there the fires of the natives. They encountered

storms and dense fogs, and many times were forced

by the tempests to turn back. Two of the vessels

were lost.
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On August '21st of the following vear tin- re-
t* *

mainder entered the Straits of Magellan. For two

long weeks they were tossed about by squalls and

head-winds in narrow passages and amid threat-

ening rocks. Hut as Drake was brave and skilful,

and was a daring seaman, they made 1 a safe passage.

It was a time of trial and heavy loss, however,

for one of his vessels deserted and still another was

lost, so that be bad only his flag-ship, the Golden

IliinL with which to continue his voyage. This

stout ship carried twenty guns, of brass and iron.

lie cleared the passage, however, the storms ceased,

and he turned north, sailing along the western coast

of the new continent.

DRAKE CAPTURES SPANISH GOLD AND SILVER

Fortune now turned in his favor, for be began

to find the Spanish gold and silver be was seeking.

In the harbor at Valparaiso be came stealthily upon
a Spanish treasure-shit), loaded with wine and gold.

Having surprised and captured it, be entered the

town, and seized provisions and cedar that the

Spaniards bad stored there.

Landing again a little farther to the north, be

found a Spaniard lying asleep on the shore, with
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thirteen bars of silver beside him. He took the

silver, but left the Spaniard unharmed. Then he

caught sight of another Spaniard and an Indian

A Spaniard and an Indian boy driving eight llamas

boy, driving eight llamas. Each llama was loaded

with two bags, and each of the bags contained fifty

pounds of silver. All this silver he took for his

own.
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On February Kith Drake's \essel sailed into llu-

harborof Lima,the citywhichPizarro had founded.

Here- lie found Spanish ships lyini*' at anchor. Of

course none of the Spaniards were expecting

Drake, hecanse they had never before seen an Kn.n'-

lislnnan in this part of the world. They were there-

fore much sin-prised at his sudden coming and

taken oil' their *'uard.

Drake cut the cables of their ships, and secured

silks, linen, and a chest of plate. Hut he did not

delay for further plunder, hecanse he heard that

a treasure-laden vessel had sailed out of the harbor

for Panama. Eagerly he started in pursuit, prom-

ising a golden chain to the sailor who should first

si^'lit the Spanish vessel. At last one of his men

saw her trying hard to escape, and after a hot

chase Drake overtook her, and obtained a lar^'c

quantity of <^old and jewels.

Continuing his course, he next captured some

Spanish ships on their way from China. On one

of them he found charts of <^rcat value, which

showed the route taken by the- Spaniards in their

trade with China. lie also found on this vessel

silks, line white china, and other precious things.



118 American Explorers

After a hot chase Drake overtook her

DRAKE AND THE INDIANS

Drake was now satisfied that for the present

he had done enough harm to the Spaniards, and,
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having ^reatly enriched himself, IK- bc^an to think

of returning to England. Hut, fearless and skil-

ful as a seaman though he was, he did not consider

it wise to return hv the- same way he had come, for
>

the Spaniards mi^ht he lyin (n' in wait for him.

He- therefore decided to sail across the Pacific,

and reach England that way. First he took a

northerly course, and stopped at or near what is

now San Francisco. Indians in ^reat numbers

came down to the shore to welcome him. Like the

Indians who first saw Columbus, thev believed
t/

Drake and his men to he ^ods, and sent them

presents, including some articles of feather-work.

A second time the Indians came and brought

feathers and ba^s of tobacco. From the top of a

hill their chid' made a lon.u
1

speech, tiresome' both

to himself and his bearers. At the end of it the

other Indians bowed in a slow and serious way.

Three days later the Kin>' himself came leading a

procession of men, women, and children. lie was

clothed in skins and surrounded by a bodyguard

of a hundred warriors. Following him and his

jruard were the natives, decked with feathers. Kach

one bore a present, and all advanced, singing and

dancing. In front of the Kin** 1 was an Indian.



120 American Explorers

bearing two crowns made of colored feathers and

three very long chains of bone. They put one of

the crowns on Drake's head, and hung the chains

They put one of the crowns on Drake's head

as tokens of rank about his neck, and begged him

to stay with them and be their King.

Drake called the country New Albion, but he

soon sailed away, as he was eager to reach England
once more. Before sailing, however, he set up a
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plate or post, and on it engraved the- name of

Queen Elizabeth.

DKAKi: .MADi; A KNKMIT l\\ grr.KN 1 .1 .1 / A l;i . I 1 1

On June J.'itli lie set sail once* more-, going in

a westerly direction across the Pacific. For sixty-

eight days he saw no land. Finally he reached the

Philippines, and other islands of the Pacific, where

he traded with the natives, took on fresh provisions,

and repaired his ships.

In cruising among the islands he sometimes had

to sail through shallow seas. One day they were
*

stranded on a shoal from eight o'clock in the even-

ing until four o'clock the next afternoon. Before

they could get free they weir ohliged to lighten

their vessel by throwing overboard the guns, some

hags of meal, and valuable spices.

Having explored the islands, Drake sailed for

the Cape of (iood Hope, and, after several narrow

escapes, reached the west coast of Africa, and

finally arrived in England on November '*, 1.">H(),
V *

after a voyage of nearly three years.

Ai first he was not allowed to land, because his

attacks on the Spanish vessels had threatened a

war between Kngland and Spain, but later he was
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invited to court, and treated with distinguished

honor. The Queen herself dined on board his ship,

.-UK! knighted him. From that time he was called

Sir Francis Drake. He became her Majesty's

Admiral-at-Sea.

In the last years of his life he was engaged in

war against Spain. During that time he again

ravaged the Spanish settlements in America. These

expeditions were so ruthless that the Spaniards

put a ransom of two hundred thousand dollars

upon liis head. They called him The Dragon.*

They did not capture him. But in one of his

expeditions he was unsuccessful, and finally, like

I)e Soto, died of a fever, and was buried in a

waterv "-rave.
* <

These achievements are enough to insure Sir

Francis Drake a place in history, but he has an
added claim in that he was the second man to sail

entirely around the globe.f

1 >r;tkr mr;ms dragon.
I'!"- first 111:111 to sail around the earth was Magellan, who was a

rtu-'i.'M
,,,,,tain in command of a Spanish fleet. He started on his

Wonderful voyage in 1519.
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OUTLINK FOK ORAL AM) \YK1TTK\ LAMilACiK

BOYHOOD AND YOI rii OK FRVNCIS DRAKE.

Hi; <;oi.s o\ A vovuii; WITH HAWKINS.

DRAKK SKI.S THE PACIFIC; HIS <;REAT DESIRE.

II K KITS OIT A FLEET.

IT KNCOI NTKHS sToiais \ND FOGS.

Loss OF ALL THK VF.SSKLS Ml'T ONE.

DIC\KK KOI:S TIM: SI-AMVHDS OF TIIEIH TREASURES.

Hi: ALSO CATTIUKS SPANISH SHII-S.

HE LANDS ON THE COAST OK WHAT IS NOW CALIFORNIA.

THE INDIANS VISIT DRAKE; THE INDIAN KING.

DRAKE REACHES THE PHILIPPINES.

Hi: RETI KVS TO KMILAND; HIS RECEPTION THERE.

SIR FRANCIS DRAKE : THE DRAGON.

THE SECOND MAN TO SAIL AROUND THE GLOBE.

TO THE PUPIL

1. Why did Drake dislike the Spaniards?
2. Imagine yourself on Drake's flagship in 1576, and tell about some

things that impress you.

3. Try to form mental pictures of what took place on the occasion

when the Indians visited Drake.

4. What do you admire in Drake's character?
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RALEIGH AS A BOY AND SOLDIER

ONE of the foremost Englishmen that lived in

the time of Drake and Hawkins was Walter Ra-

leigh. He was born, in 1552, in a sea-coast town

in southern England, and belonged to a family of

high social rank. He was a handsome lad, of high

spirits, and fond of all sorts of outdoor life.

But he was especially interested in stories of

adventure as they were told by old sailors of his

time. One of these sailors, Sir Humphrey Gilbert,

was a famous explorer. He told about his own

adventures, and also, perhaps, about the daring

voyages of Hawkins and Drake. These stories

stirred the imagination of the active, restless boy.

We know little about his early years, but we are

told that he went to the University of Oxford, pos-

sibly when only fourteen years of age, and re-

mained there three years.

But the world of action attracted him more than

the quiet life of college. So without waiting to
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finish his course at Oxl'ord lie- went to France and

joined the Huguenot army, who were fighting their

fellow-countrymen, the- Catholic nartv in France.
*

There he remained ahout six years, and then went

to Holland to join the Dutch, who were- at war witli

Spain. In this eeaseless campaigning he mastered

the art of war and at the same time learned, like

Drake, to hate Spain. During the- remainder of

his life he did all that he eould to hnmhle the power

of this haughty nation.
c * *

In 1.57S he joined his half-brother. Sir Humph-

rey Gilbert, in an expedition to Newfoundland.

Here they hoped to plant a colony, and from there

to sail and discover a northwest passage to China.

Hut having put to sea, they were attacked by

Spaniards, and after the loss of one of their ships

and more or less damage to others, they were

oblmrd to return home.~

After the failure of this expedition, Raleigh,

put in command of a hundred men, went to Ireland

to tight against a rebellion there. Here, too, he

distinguished himself as a brave soldier.
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SIR WALTER RALEIGH AND QUEEN ELIZABETH

On his return from Ireland, Raleigh, who was

now about twenty-seven years of age, had an op-

.

u<

He spread it for her Majesty to walk upon

portunity to show a marked courtesy to Queen

Elizabeth. One day, as the Queen with her at-
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tendants was about to cross a rnuddv road. Kalciu'h
* ^j

chanced to he- standing near hy. On seeing the

Queen hesitate, he- took from his shoulders his heau-

tit'ul velvet cloak and spread it across the way Cor

her Majesty to walk upon. This act of gallantry

at once- insured the friendship of the Queen. Ka-

leigh soon became one of her greatest favorites.

In appearance he- had much to recommend him.

He was tall, of shapely figure and handsome feat-

ures, with dark hair and a hii^h color, and eyes that

were expressive and piercing. In conversation he

was brilliant and witty, and his dress at court was

rich and splendid.

Some of his clothing is described to us. On his

hat he wore a pearl-covered hand and a black, /jew-

elled feather. His shoes, which were tied with

white ribbons, were ornamented with /jewels worth

six thousand six hundred pieces of <*'old. On some

occasions he wore a suit of armor made of silver.

It was quite the fashion in those days for rich men,

as well as women, to dress in this ^or^eous manner.

Queen Elizabeth herself owned ten hundred and

seventy-five dresses decked with jewels of LjTeat

value, and eiht wi^-.s of various colors..

You can easily believe 1 that Kaleii'h was a vcrv
*
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rich man. The Queen made him rich because she

was fond of him. She gave him large estates and

offices of trust that paid him large sums of money.

She also gave him permission to control the sale of

special articles of trade, broadcloth, for instance,

and wines, in order that he might further enrich

himself.

RALEIGH'S WISH TO PLANT A COLONY IN

AMERICA

Although so lavishly supplied, Raleigh did not

spend his money altogether foolishly. As a rule

he knew how to apply it to good purposes. As
the story goes on, you will find that we to-day owe

much to him for the attempts he made to establish

an English colony in this country. In order to

carry out this plan, which was very near his heart,

he got permission from the Queen to make discov-

eries and to take possession of lands not already

occupied by any Christian prince. He wished to

plant a colony in the country north of Florida,
for England claimed this land because the Cabots
were the first men to discover the mainland of
North America.

Already, hefore Raleigh's time, efforts had been
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made to settle- it, but they were unsuccessful.

Now, in 1584, Raleigh fitted out two vessels, which

he sent over to the New World to find out some-

thing about the country. The men in charge

of these vessels

brought back to

Raleigh as products

of the expedition

two Indians, some

skins of wild ani-

mals, and a string

of pearls that were

as big as large peas.

They said they/ /

found the Indians

in this country
friendlv and the

-fe!O^
.

-.

country itself beau-

tiful. Altogether,

they gave so glow-
n They brought back to Raleigh two Indians

ing an account ot

the land they had seen that Queen Elizabeth said

it should be called Virginia, in honor of herself, the

Virgin Queen.



i;jO American Explorers

/

RALEIGH'S FIRST COLONY

The next year Raleigh sent out a colony of one

hundred and eight persons. Sir Richard Gren-

ville was the commander of the fleet, and Ralph

Lane was the governor of the colony. They landed

at Roanoke Island.

This colony met with great misfortunes. They

treated the Indians harshly and soon got their ill-

will. I think you will agree that they deserved it.

The story is told that when an Indian stole a silver
J

cup from the colonists, they punished the tribe by

burning not only their corn, but the entire Indian

village. Such cruelty, of course, made the Indians

hate the white man.

But the ill-will of the natives was not the only

trouble the colonists had. Provisions ran short,

and Grenville sailed to England for more.

During his absence, Lane started out to explore

the Roanoke River, of which he had heard wonder-

ful tales from the Indians. They said that this

stream flowed through a land rich with minerals,

<uid that its waters came out of a fountain so

near the South Sea that in time of storm the waves

broke over into the fountain. They also said that
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near this stream was a town with walls made of

pearls.

But Lane and the men who went with him

found no such fountain; they found no such town.

On the contrary, they endured great hardships, and

suffered so much for want of food that they had
/

to eat dog meat to keep from starving. When

Lane returned, everybody felt discouraged, and

the future looked gloomy enough. But about

this time, Drake, who was on his way to England
with a large fleet, arrived and anchored near Roa-

noke Island. On hearing of the condition of the

colonists, he offered to leave a part of his fleet with

provisions. But when a heavy storm came up, all

the colonists decided that they wished to return to

England.

Drake took them all aboard, and they sailed for

home. They had found no gold, but they carriedJ O

to England something that had quite as much value

as gold or precious stones,- -tobacco, white potatoes,

and Indian corn.

An amusing incident is told in connection with

the early use of tobacco in England. Raleigh him-

self was one of the first to learn to smoke. He

procured for himself a pipe of silver shaped like
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the pipes used by the Indians. One day, shortly

after he had begun to smoke, a servant came into

his room. Seeing the smoke coming from his mas-

Threw a tankard of ale into his face

ter's mouth, the man supposed Raleigh was on fire,

and, hastily approaching, threw a tankard of ale

into his face.

But long before this first cargo of tobacco and
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other products had arrived in Kngland, in fact only

two or three weeks after it had left Koanokc with

Drake, (irenville relumed witli provisions. Find-

ing the island deserted, he left fifteen men, and lie

himself returned to Kngland.

KAI.KK;H'S si.roxi) COLONY

In 1.587 a seeond colonv, under Captain John

White. sailed from Kngland for Koanoke. This

colonv contained one hundred and fifty men, seven-
*

teen women, and eleven children. Raleigh himself

wished to join this colony, hut the Queen would

not allow him to leave her court. lie directed that

the 1 colonists should make a settlement at Chesa-

peake Hay, after first landing at Koanoke Island

to find the fifteen men left there by (ircnville.

The company landed at Roanokc but could not find

the men.

After staying there awhile the sailors refused

to sail to the Chesapeake, because the summer was

far spent. The colonists were therefore obliged to

remain on Roanoke Island.

Like the first colonv, thev were harsh in their

treatment of the Indians, and began to have trouble'

with them. Very soon, too, their provisions began
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to fail, and they begged Captain White to go to

England for fresh supplies.

Unwillingly he consented, for he did not like to

leave the colonists, nor did he wish to separate him-

self from his little granddaughter, Virginia Dare,

who was the first white child born in the New
World.

He reached home just as his countrymen were

preparing to meet the great Spanish fleet that was

coming to attack England. The fleet was called

the Spanish Armada. For her defence England

needed all the ships that her seamen could muster.

The fleet, therefore, which Raleigh fitted out for

the colony had to remain at home.

It was almost three years before Captain White

could return to Roanoke. He sailed then, not on

his own vessel, but as a passenger on a merchant-

ship bound for the West Indies. When he reached

Roanoke, the only traces he could discover of the

missing colonists were some chests of books and

some maps.

When Captain White had gone to England
three years before, the colonists had agreed that if

they should leave the place for any reason they

would cut into the bark of a tree the name of the
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place to which they were ^'oiiig. I f they were in

distress they would cut a cross above the name.

\ IV]

Found " Croatoan
"
cut in a tree

Captain White found "
Croatoan

"
cut in a tree

in capital letters, hut he found no cross. Now,

Croatoan is the name of an island near Roanoke.

White therefore ur^ed the captain of the vessel

to carry him to this island. Uut as the weather
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had become stormy, the captain refused to sail

farther.

What became of the lost colony no one has ever

learned. Years afterward, however, it was dis-

covered that four men, two boys, and one girl had

been adopted into an Indian tribe. The rest of the

colonists were probably killed by the Indians. Ra-

leigh sent out five expeditions in search of his lost

colony, but without success.

It was his strong desire to make a new England
in America. It was the great purpose of his life.

In his attempts to plant a colony in the New World

he spent a sum that would now equal two millions

of dollars.

RALEIGH'S MISFORTUNES

Thus ended Raleigh's attempt to colonize North

America. But he was a restless man and always
had some plan to work out. He especially desired

to find a northwest passage to China. He also

was strongly bent on capturing Spanish vessels and

plundering Spanish settlements on the coast. He
was eager, too, to find the El Dorado, or Land of

Gold, for which De Soto and other great leaders

had sought.
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In 1595, therefore, he sailed to Guiana, where

this land rich in gold and gems was then supposed

to be, and went up the Orinoco River. Several hun-

dred miles from its mouth he gave up the search.

Hut he found Indians, and when he wrote an ac-

count of his travels after his return, he repeated the

stories told by them of the wealth of a rich city

whose people sprinkled gold-dust on their bodies.

He also told of a tribe of Indians with eyes in their

shoulders and mouths in their chests.

These great exploits and the tales of supposed

discoveries doubtless made Raleigh famous, but, as

might be expected, a man enjoying so much of the

Queen's favor and having so much power had many

jealous rivals. Moreover, Raleigh himself did not

make friends easily. He was proud and haughty,

and not always courteous in manner. Sometimes

he was harsh in speech. Queen Elizabeth, how-

ever, continued to favor him until he secretlv mar-
*/

ried one of her beautiful maids of honor, and then

because of this offence she threw him and his wife

into prison for two months. She afterwards let

them have their freedom.

When Queen Elizabeth died, James I became

King of England. Not being friendly to Raleigh,
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he had him tried and convicted for treason, and

confined in the Tower of London for twelve years.

Raleigh obtained his freedom by promising King
James a large quantity of gold if he would allow

Sir Walter Raleigh in prison

him to go to Guiana, for Raleigh could not forget
the land rich in gold and gems that he had once

sought on the banks of the Orinoco River. The

following year, therefore, he sailed from England
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with a fleet of eleven vessels. After a voyage of
*. t>

about six months he readied the island of 'Trinidad,

on the coast of Guiana. But as he was suffering

from a severe attack of fever, he himself could not

journey farther. Hence, he remained at Trinidad

and sent his fleet up the river under the command

of his son and a trusted officer.

It was expected that they would find the mine,

but they did not. Instead, they fell in with a force

of Spaniards with whom they fought a battle.

They lost many men, Raleigh's son being among
the slain.

As Raleigh's health was not strong and, as con-

ditions were against further exploring, he returned

to England, a disappointed man. On his arrival,

by order of the King he was again arrested and

thrown into prison because he had broken the peace

with Spain. After remaining in prison for a short

time, he was beheaded, in 1618. When he ascended

the scaffold he felt the edge of the axe and re-

marked, This is a sharp medicine, but a sound

cure for all diseases."

Thus died Sir Walter Raleigh, the foremost

man of his time. He was a soldier and sailor, a

poet and historian. He did well whatever he
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attempted, and he has a lasting claim upon our

remembrance.

OUTLINE FOR ORAL AND WRITTEN LANGUAGE

WALTER RALEIGH AS A BOY.

HE JOINS THE DUTCH IN THEIR WAR WITH SPAIN.

RALEIGH GAINS THE FAVOR OF QUEEN ELIZABETH.

HlS STRIKING PERSONAL APPEARANCE.

THE QUEEN MAKES RALEIGH A RICH MAN.

HE WISHES TO PLANT A COLONY IN THE NEW WORLD.

HE SENDS TWO VESSELS TO AMERICA.

HlS FIRST COLONY.

CRUEL TREATMENT OF THE INDIANS.

LANE SAILS UP THE ROANOKE RIVER.

DRAKE OFFERS TO AID THE SUFFERING COLONISTS.

RALEIGH LEARNS TO SMOKE.

A SECOND COLONY LANDS AT RoANOKE ISLAND.

CAPTAIN WHITE SAILS TO ENGLAND.

HlS RETURN TO RoANOKE ISLAND.

HE FINDS NO COLONY AT CROATOAN.

WHAT BECAME OF THE LOST COLONY?

RALEIGH SAILS TO THE ORINOCO RIVER.

His ENEMIES; THE QUEEN THROWS HIM INTO PRISON.

Ill) IS CONFINED IN THE TOWER OF LONDON.
HE AGAIN SAILS TO SOUTH AMERICA.

THE GREAT ENGLISHMAN BEHEADED.

TO THE PUPIL

1. Do you think that Walter Raleigh was such a boy as you would
like to have as a playmate?

2. Tell about Raleigh's act of gallantry.
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3. Can you form a mental picture of Raleigh in court dress?

4. How did he become a rich man?

5. What mistake did Raleigh's first colony make?
6. How many times was Raleigh thrown into prison, and why?
7. What do we owe to Raleigh?
8. What do you think of him?
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HUDSON SAILS TO THE NEW WORLD

WE have seen how Spain and England sent out

great navigators to sail to distant parts of the world

with the hope of finding a northwest passage to

China. We have now to note how Holland joined

in this search for a northwest passage. The man
she employed in this enterprise was the well-known

English explorer, Henry Hudson, who belonged

to a family long connected with such explorations.

It is likely that when he was a mere boy he was

apprenticed to learn the art of navigation.

In 1607 and 1608, while serving an English

company called the Muscovy Company, he made
two voyages which attracted much attention. At
this time he went nearer to the North Pole than

any one had ever been before.

The fame of these voyages caused both the

French and the Dutch to try to secure Hudson's

services for similar expeditions, and in 1609 he

agreed to sail for the Dutch East India Company.
142
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In April of that year, in a little vessel called

the Half Moon, he sailed for Nova Zembla. His

crew consisted of about twenty sailors, part of

whom were Englishmen and part Dutchmen. But

the sea was full of ice, making the voyage so hard

that the crew threatened to rise against him if he

continued farther. He therefore turned about

and sailed across the Atlantic, going as far south

as Chesapeake Bay.

At that time people believed that west of Vir-

ginia to the north there was a great sea called the

South Sea, we now call it the Pacific Ocean,-

and that between it and the Atlantic Ocean there

was but a narrow strip of land. The noted sailors

were looking for a strait through this strip of land

which would connect the two great bodies of water.

This supposed strait was the long-sought north-

west passage which should lead to the Far East.

HUDSON SAILS UP THE HUDSON RIVER

Sailing along the coast northward from the

Chesapeake, Hudson came to a large stream of

water which he thought was the Northwest Passage,

and there, on September 3, 1609, he anchored. The

stream, which was afterwards named for him, wras
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the Hudson River, and the mouth at which he an-

chored was what we now call New York Harbor.

Here the Indians came aboard. They were

clothed in loose robes of deerskin. They wore

Gave tobacco in exchange for knives and beads

copper ornaments and they smoked copper pipes.

They brought aboard the Half Moon green to-

bacco, and they gave this in exchange for knives
and beads.
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One of Hudson's exploring parties landed on

the west shore of the Hudson Kiver, which was

lined witli Indians. These Indians received the

white men kindly and inive them tobacco and dried
*

currants. Another exploring party, however, the

Indians did not treat so well, for they attacked it,

and killed one man.

On September 12th Hudson sailed up the newly

discovered waterway, hoping that he should find

the strait connecting the Atlantic Ocean with the

Pacific. Delighted with the beauty of the country,

he spoke of the land as pleasant with grass and

flowers and goodly trees.

As he sailed along, the Indians came out to the

Half Moon in canoes. The canoes were made out

of the trunks of trees, each hollowed trunk form-

ing a canoe. The Indians seemed glad to trade

witli the white men, and gave them grapes, pump-

kins, and furs, for hatchets, beads, and knives.

The Half Moon continued its journey almost

to the present site of Albany. There Hudson

stopped, but he sent a small boat a little farther up
the stream. He was disappointed, for he now

found that this river was not a strait after all. He
therefore sailed back again toward the open sea.
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HENRY HUDSON AND THE INDIANS

On liis way downstream he had opportunity to

<>l).x<T\r (he habits of some of the natives. At one

place an Indian in a canoe hovered around the ves-

Henry Hudson and the Indians

sel for some time. His purpose was not at first

apparent, but when the sailors were not looking
be climbed up the rudder of the vessel and stole a

m<l two shirts from the cabin. The sailors
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quickly discovered him, and for his slight oU'enee

they shot him dead.

Later, at another place, Hudson went ashore

in a canoe of an old Indian chief whose trihe con-

sisted of forty men and seventeen women. On
v

landing, as he tells us, he was escorted to the chief's

wigwam. It was circular in shape and covered

with hark. Within two mats were spread for him

to sit upon, and food was brought and served in

red wooden howls. It consisted partly of two

pigeons and a dog, specially prepared for Hud-

son and his sailors to eat. This is an illustration of

the kindness Hudson received from the Indians

on almost all occasions. Their friendly attentions
/

were partly due to Hudson's kindness in dealing

with them. In fact, his attitude toward them was

so friendly that they never forgot it, and always

felt kindly toward him and the Dutch settlers.

Many years after Hudson had discovered the
/ /

Hudson River, a white man went among the Ind-

ians and heard their traditions concerning Hud-

son's coming. According to this tradition, the

Indians were much surprised when they saw the

Half Moon. Some of them thought it was a great

animal, some a large fish, and others still a house
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"^^ ,xtf>*'%i

They used the axes and shoes as ornaments

floating on the water. They believed Henry Hud-

son himself to be the Manitou, or Great Spirit,

come to visit them.

They believed all the other white men to be
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manitous also, hut inferior to the Great Mnnitou.

When the vessel arrived they prepared to receive

the Manitou in due form. They had a dance for
/

his pleasure and offered sacrifices to satisfy him if

he were angry with them.

When Hudson and his men gave the Indians

axes, shoes, and stockings, the Indians did not know

what to do with them. They used the axes and

shoes as ornaments by suspending them from

their necks, and the stockings as tobacco pouches.

Later, the white men showed the Indians how to

put handles in the axes, and to cut trees with them.

They also showed them how to use the stockings.

Then the Indians laughed because they had made

such queer mistakes.

Later, according to an Indian tradition, the

white men asked for as much land as a bullock's

hide would cover. The Indians, thinking that a

bullock's hide would cover a very little land, readily

granted the request. But to their surprise the

white men took the hide and cut it into narrow

strips. Then they tied these strips together into

considerable length and stretched the hide to a long

distance, making a great circle of it. In this way

they made the hide cover a large piece of land.
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HUDSON CRUELLY TREATED BY HIS MEN

On Hudson's return from the voyage up the

Hudson Kiver he was compelled by the English-

men in his vessel to land at Dartmouth, England.

lie at once wrote to the Dutch East India Com-

pany in Holland, saying he would like to make

another voyage in search of the Northwest Pas-

sage to India and asking for more money and

men. The answer was that he must at once re-

turn to Holland. But when he was on the point of

putting to sea he was ordered by the English gov-
ernment to remain in his own country and make
further voyages in her interest. He had to obey.

In April, 1610, therefore, he sailed from Eng-
land on his last voyage for the New World. It was
a voyage of great danger and hardship, during
which his ship made its way into the large body of

water since known as Hudson's Bay, after its dis-

coverer. For nearly eight months the ship was
fro/en in ice.

When food grew scarce the crew insisted on

returning to England as soon as the ice should
break. Hut Hudson said "No," for he believed



Henri) 151

they were near the Pacific coast, and he wan ten 1 to

push westward.

On Hudson's ship was a young
1 man whom

Hudson had befriended many times. His name

The mutinous crew cut the small boat loose and sailed away

was Henry (ireen. This ungrateful wretch
* C3

planned an uprising. The result was that Hudson

was hound hand and foot, and, along with his sou
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and seven sick men, was forced into a small boat

that was tied to the stern of the vessel.

As soon as they had cleared their way out of

the ice, the mutinous crew cut the small boat loose

and sailed away. When they arrived in England,

Green and the rest of the crew were imprisoned

and an expedition was sent across the Atlantic to

search for the ill-fated Hudson. But he could not

be found, and nothing more was ever heard of the

great sailor.

His memory lingers in a curious way among
the descendants of the Dutch along the Hudson

River. They say, when it thunders, There are

Henry Hudson and his crew playing ninepins

among the hills." History gives him an important

place among the explorers of the New World.

OUTLINE FOR ORAL AND WRITTEN LANGUAGE

HUDSON'S VOYAGE ACROSS THE ATLANTIC.

PEOPLE'S BELIEF ABOUT THE NORTHWEST PASSAGE.

HUDSON'S FIRST MEETING WITH THE INDIANS.

HlS TRADE WITH THEM.

THE INDIAN THIEF.

THE OLD CHIEF ENTERTAINS HUDSON.

WHAT THE INDIANS THOUGHT ABOUT THE WHITE MEN AND THEIR

VESSEL.
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II(t\v Tin: I \ DIA\> USED AXES, SHOES \M> STOCKINGS.

Hi i ISDN'S LAST VOYAGE; ms TROUBLES.

THE (jui.vr .-VILOU si.r ADRIFT TO IM-:RISII.

TO THE PUPIL

1. How did Hudson gain the good will of the Indians?

2. Imagine and describe the scene when the old Indian chief enter-

tained Hudson.

3. What do you like about Henry Hudson?
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CHAMPLAIN PLANTS A COLONY AT QUEBEC

LONG before Holland made any attempts to

secure the wealth to be found in the New World,

France sent out explorers, who brought great honor

to their country. Among these was Samuel de

Champlain, who has rightly been called the Father

of New France. For more than thirty years he

was the foremost explorer and colonizer in America.

He was born, in 1567, in a small seaport town on

the Bay of Biscay, in France. His early life pre-

pared him for the important work of his later years,

for while he was still young he joined the royal

navy. There he became a captain and learned to

be a skilful sailor. He afterward fought for his

king as a soldier in Brittany and became well

trained in the arts of war.

His youth was a restless one. After leaving

the army, he sailed to the West Indies, where he

spent two and a half years. During this time he
154
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visited the principal ports of those islands and went

to Mexico and Panama.

On returning from the West Indies to France

in 1603, he joined an expedition to the New World.

At this time he explored St. Lawrence Bay and the

St. Lawrence River as far as the site of Montreal.

The next year he set out on a second expedition

to the New World to explore and colonize in the

name of the King of France. He spent three

years exploring the coast from the Bay of Fundy
to a point south of Cape Cod, and then returned

to his native land.

In 1608 he again sailed to the New World with

the purpose of planting a colony somewhere on the

St. Lawrence River. But he hoped also to find

the northwest route to China. As a part of his

plan, in the summer of 1608 he laid the foundation

of Quebec. This was the first permanent French
* ' "~ T TTT I T

s_Liicii..erit in nic j^ew vVGrici.

But the trials of the new life made the sett'crs

unhappy. They blamed Champlam for their dis-

comforts, and not long after he had erected the

first buildings of Quebec, they tried to take his

life. Champlam learned of the plan from one of

his men. One morning while he was looking after
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some workmen in a garden near his quarters, this

man came and told him that a Frenchman named
t

Duval was a ringleader in a plot to put him to

(2
Champlain learned of the plan from one of his men

death. Duval planned with three other men as

helpers either to strangle Champlain in bed or to

make an outcry at night and kill him in the midst

of the excitement.
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Champlain acted promptly. lie had tliese 1'our

men invited to go aboard a vessel and there he

had them seized. The next dav the ringleader was
/

handed, and the three other men that were plotting

with him were sent to France, where they were

punished.

This unhappy incident was one of many. Dur-

ing the hard winter the twenty-eight men who

formed this first colony endured great suffering

from the dreadful disease, scurvy. By the middle

of April twenty of them had died, and some of the

remaining eight were afflicted with the disease.

Little could be expected from this poor remnant,

but when new colonists came from France that

spring, Champlain was able to set out again on an

exploring expedition.

CHAMPLAIN JOINS AN INDIAN WAR-PARTY

The Indians about Quebec had told him of a

great lake to the south. With the double purpose

of finding out all that he could in regard to this

lake, and of making friends of the Indians that

lived near Quebec, Champlain joined a war-party

of the northern tribes in their journey to the south.

These tribes were constantly at war with the
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Iroquois, or Five Nations, who lived in what is now

New York State.* The region of Lake Cham-

plain was the principal battle-field where the

northern tribes and the Iroquois met to do their

fighting.

The party which Champlain and his French

companions joined consisted of sixty warriors.

They embarked in twenty-four bark canoes, and

made- a picturesque company as they paddled along

the Richelieu River toward the south.

In making their advance their force divided

into three parties. The largest kept under arms

so as to be ready to fight. Another consisted of

scouts, who went in advance and on either side

of the main fighting body. The third party was

made up of those who hunted for food, and these

hunters remained in the rear of the main body.
The Indians carried no food with them except

parched corn that had been pounded into a kind

of meal. Of this they made a sort of porridge by
mixing the meal with water, but they kept it in re-

serve until they got near the enemy. While they
were still far enough away to hunt without being

M-.rc than a hundred years later the Iroquois, or Five Nations, were
I'.v MII Indian tribe from North Carolina. After that time theywm- called the Six Nations.



Samuel dc ('ltanij)lain l.VJ

heard, they killed animals for their food as they

needed it day l>v dav.
* * *

When they encamped at night they always sent

two or three canoes with warriors several miles

'

!

. 'J;L,

Chiinipliiin and his French companions

ahead to discover whether any enemies were lurk-
*

ing near. Hut when they got elose to the place

where they expected to Hud their foes they trayelled
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all night and kept under cover during the day.

While under cover they lounged about, or slept,

or told stories, but they did not dare build fires for

fear the smoke would be seen by a skulking foe.

When they reached the great lake they jour-

neyed all day and at night drew their boats up on

the shore, where they placed them side by side.

Then they felled trees and made a barricade in

the form of a semicircle. The barricade opened

toward the water so that the party could easily

escape in their boats if they were attacked and had

to retreat. Within it they slept under camp tents

made of bark.

Many times during the journey the Indians

asked Champlain if he had had any dreams. He

usually told them
:

No." But finally, at the end

of three weeks, he dreamed that he saw some Iro-

quois Indians struggling in the water near a moun-

tain. In his dream he thought he told his Indian

friends to help the Iroquois. But they replied,

No, they are not worth saving; let them die."

On waking, he told the Indians of his dream, and

they showed great satisfaction. They felt certain

that it meant victory over their foes in the ap-

p road ling battle.
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THE FIGHT WITH THE IROQUOIS

About ten o'clock in the evening of that day,

as Champlain and his Indian friends were pad-

dling over the lake, they came upon a party of

Iroqnois Indians in canoes, not far from what is

now Ticonderoga. At once each party filled the

air with their horrible warwhoops.

But the Iroquois, a band of two hundred war-

riors, made for the shore, as they were not willing

to fight on the water. They at once cut down

trees and made a barricade. Then they sent two
%/

canoes with messengers to ask Champlain's party

if they wanted to fight. The answer was, No,"

as the foes could not easily see each other that night.Cj

It was therefore agreed that the battle should take

place at sunrise next morning.

In the meantime Champlain's allies had used

poles in fastening together their canoes to keep

them from drifting. In this condition they re-

mained within arrow shot of the shore.

During the night each party danced and

shouted and hurled insults at the other. The war-

riors of eacb party called the others cowards, and

boasted that they would gain the victory next

morning.
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.lust IK-fore daybreak Champlain and the other

t\\o Frenchmen ])iit
on their armor in preparation

for UK- coining battle. Over his shoulder Cham-

plain wore- a belt attached to his ammunition box,

at liis side 1 a sword, and in his hand he carried a gun
that lu- had loaded with four bullets. The allies

kept tlif Frenchmen, who were each in a separate

boat, can- lullv concealed from the view of the Iro-
i/

quo is. It was important that the enemy should not

sir them. Therefore, after daylight, the French-

men cither lay in the bottom of their boats or cov-

ered themselves with Indian robes.

Early in the morning Champlain's allies landed

not Car from the enemy's position. A little later

the Iroquois, with the steadiness of trained sol-

diers, advanced from their barricades. They were

strong, fine-looking warriors, of noble bearing.

When they approached Champlain's party, the

latter became uneasy, and opened the way for

Uiamplain and the other two Frenchmen to ad-

vanee to the front. They called Champlain's at-

tention to some of the Iroquois warriors who wore

long plumes in their head-dresses. They told him
&

that these were chiefs and that he must aim at them
he shot his gun. As soon as he saw the Iro-
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quois preparing to let ily their arrows, lie took

steady aim at the- three chiefs. \\'hen lie shot, two

Two of them fell dead

of them fell dead, and one of the warriors received

a wound.
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The Iroijiiois were amazed at the sound of the

o mi and at the death of two of their chiefs, but

tlicv hravely stood their ground and gave battle

to UK- allies. In a few minutes the other two

1 'ivnehmeii shot and killed other Indians. Terri-

lird hy the- strange weapons, the Iroquois soon

turned and (led through the woods like frightened

deer. They left their provisions and their canoes,

and some of them, in their confusion, even threw

auay their weapons. The Indians with Champlain
then set upon the fleeing forces, killing many and

capturing others.

Hut these gunshots were unfortunate for the

prospects of the French colonists in America, be-

cause they made the Iroquois bitter enemies of the

Fmidi. Aside from the fighting of this expedi-
tion, the discovery of the lake was most important
to ("hamplain. He named it after himself, Lake

('haniplain. This was in 1609. The party then

returned to Quebec. The next year Champlain
wenl hack to France. After a short time spent
there, he returned to Canada and again joined his

Indian friends in an expedition against the Iro-

quois Indians. This time Champlain's Indians
surrounded one hundred of their enemies on an
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island near the- mouth of the- Kit-lichen Kivcr, and

killed or captured all ol' them.

A USEI.F.SS .MH'KNKY

From 1G10 to Hiltt Champlain was cni])loyed

in regulating tlie fur trade Ji which the French car-

ried on with the Indians, and in looking after the

affairs of the colony. To forward his undertaking

lie placed a young man in charge of the Indians to

learn their language and their customs, and sent

an Indian to France to learn the French language.

lie hoped to use these men as interpreters.

Although Champlain traded with the Indians

for furs, the traffic was with him a means to an end.

lie had a much keener interest in other things.

For he wanted to find the Northwest Passage to

India, and he wanted also to make the Indians

Christians.

In the hope of finding the Northwest Passage,

he made a /journey in the spring of 1013. A
Frenchman had told him that there was a salt sea

only seventeen (lavs' journey north of Montreal.
V W V %

He started out with five companions and two

* The fur trade with the Indians was a main source of money-making
with both the French and the Dutch colonists.
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canoes, hut after a toilsome journey, over rapids

;1M( | through swamps and tangled forests, he was

!,.icl t<> believe that the Frenchman had told him

a falsehood. He therefore returned to Quebec

u it limit accomplishing anything by the expedition.

i IIA.Ml'l.AIX JOINS A HURON WAR-PARTY AGAINST

THE IROQUOIS

A lit t Ic later, during the trading season in Mon-

treal. I'hamplain consented to help his Indian

friends, the Hurons and the Algonquins, in an

attack on an Iroquois town in what is now New
York State. To go and come meant a journey

nf from fifteen hundred to two thousand miles.

Chain plain could not go at once, but the Indians

were too impatient to wait for him, so he followed

tin-in. His party, consisting of ten Indians and

an interpreter, went in two canoes by way of Lake
I In ron. They followed its eastern coast for a hun-

dred miles, and then a trail inland brought them to

th< Huron country. Here he joined the larger

party that was waiting for him at the Huron town.

Kadi of these was surrounded by a palisade,

and within this there were long lodges of bark,

holding many families.
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The war party gathered at the chief Huron

village and set out in canoes. In crossing the

country they stopped here and there to hunt and

fish, because, as usual, they carried only meal with

them. When they were four days' inarch from

the Iroquois country, they hid their canoes and

followed the trail until they arrived at the Iro-

quois town.

^m^< f "i r^ ^ii it IFN P Ml
.
- X-JiiP->- M*f -J

An Iroquois
"
long house

"

The Iroquois, or Five Nations, were the fore-

most Indians in war. Their towns were surrounded

by palisades formed of tree-trunks thirty feet high.

There were sometimes as many as four rows of
*

these palisades, one within the other, and some-

times tliev enclosed several acres of land.
K

Inside of these palisades were houses arranged
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,,, order. These were called "long houses" and

uere In ni lil'ty to a hundred feet in length. They

were made l>y driving upright poles into the ground

ami fastening these together by horizontal ones

ti(-,l t<> the upright ones.

The sides and roof were made of bark. The

houses were divided into rooms eight or ten feet

\\ide, each room opening into a middle passage.

The moms were plainly furnished, having bunks

for heds. and in each room one family lived. Corn,

pumpkins, and squashes hung down from the roof

in cheerful profusion, for the Indians in these forti-

fied towns were tillers of the soil.

In the centre of each group of four rooms

was a fire pit where the food was cooked. There

was one cooked meal daily, about the middle of

the day, hut if any member of these numerous

households wished food at any other time he could

get \\liat lie wanted.

In the winter evenings the men and the squaws
and I IK- naked children gathered around the large
fin-s and listened to the stories that the warriors

t"ld of (heir deeds.

It was a town like this that Champlain and the

Huron Indians attacked. But the attack was a



t'I dc Cham plain Hi'.)

failure. In spite of all that Champlain could do,

the Indians with him would not keep themselves

in good order.

Champlain carried by a warrior

The battle lasted three hours. The Huron s

were defeated and compelled to retreat, and Cham-

plain himself was wounded twice in the leg. In

removing from the field of battle the Indians madr

precious freight of Champlain. They packed him
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in a Imsk ft. which one of the warriors carried on

his hack. When they reached their homes, the

1 1 iimns refused to give Champlain guides and

canoes, for they did not wish him to leave them,

lie was therefore ohliged to spend the winter in

the I Iiiron country.

One <lav, when out on a deer hunt with his

Indian friends, Champlain strayed off from the

hunting party to follow a strange-looking bird,

lie went deeper and deeper into the forest,

until finally, when he wished to return, he could

not find the way. He had left his compass at

the camp.

After wandering two days and sleeping three

nights without a blanket in cold, wet clothing, he

finally reached the Indian camp. After this ex-

perience the Indians would never again let him go
.i lone- into the forest.

CHAMPLAIN'S LATER LIFE

Although compelled to remain with the Hurons
during the winter, Champlain was by no means idle.

Always eager for
discovery and for extending the

lur ^ade in the interests of France, he travelled
'" company with a priest from town to town and



Sdfti/n'l (/c ('luini/tldhi 171

from tribe to tribe. Ih- learned much about the

country and made friends for the French. Wher-

ever he went crowds followed, and the Indians

feasted him. In the spring he- set out for Quebec,

and readied it in .July.

From that time Champlain deyoted himself to

the colonists of Quebec, although he was so full of

energy and of the spirit of adyenture that it would

luive been much more to his taste to lead the more

aetiye life of an explorer. Every year he went
mJ /

haek to France in the interests of the colony,

which still struggled on, though often in a starv-

ing condition.

Lack of food was not their only trouble. In

1C28 an English fleet appeared in the harbor and

demanded the surrender of the town. Champlain

flatly refused, and by his boldness and strategy

warded off an attack. But the following year an

Fnglish fleet of three vessels again sailed up the

St. Lawrence and anchored before Quebec. Cham-

plain had only sixteen half-starved men with whom

to defend the town. lie was therefore compelled

to surrender, and was taken to London. But Eng-
land did not long hold her pri/e, for Quebec was

restored to France by treaty, and four years after-
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\\.uds OiMinplain was again put in command of

the town.

His work, however, was by this time nearly at

MM i-Mcl. For twenty-seven years he had labored

for tin- colony. On Christmas Day, 1635, after an

illiK ss of two and a half months, he died in the fort

M! tin- Mi^e of sixty-eight. He was a heroic man,
fi Mi-It ss, ambitious, faithful, and was rightly called

The- Father of New France.
"

olTLINE FOR ORAL AND WRITTEN LANGUAGE

EARLI i.n i: OF CHAMPLAIN.

Ill M\Ki:s A SETTLEMENT AT QUEBEC.
Till. I'l.AN TO KILL HIM.

\ 1 1 Mil) WINTER FOR THE LITTLE COLONY.
< ii \MIM.\I\ JOINS AN INDIAN WAR-PARTY.
I Ml IK Ml THOD OF ADVANCE BY DAY.
' '" POOD THKY USED.

\ i \I;IN<; THE i:\KMY.

MM Y PROTECTED THEMSELVES AT NIGHT.
( 'll \\ll>I,\I\'s DKKA.M.

'l'"l BAND OF luoqrois.
\ WIGHT si- 1 AT IN" DANCING AND SHOUTING.

1 HAMPLADJ PREPARES FOR BATTLE.
-II"MI^ DOWN TWO INDIAN CHIEFS.

I in: IK, ,ni o,s ,,,
-

T T() FLIGHT>
( HAMPLAIN'S DESIRE TO FIND THE NORTHWEST PASSAGE.

MAKES \ D81 LESS JOURNEY.
V H- RON WAR-PARTY AGAINST THE IfiOQUOIS.
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A\ I unarms T<>\\ N.

THE "LONG HOUSE"; THK FIREPIT.

Till: III i;o\s FAIL IX THEIR ATTACK.

CHA.MI-LAIN SPENDS THE WINTER WITH THE HruoAs.

HE WINS THE FRIENDSHIP OF MANY INDIAN TRIBES.

HlS KEE.N INTEREST IN THE LITTLE COLONY.

CHAMPLAIN, "TiiE FATHER OF NEW FRANCE."

TO THE PUPIL

1. Why did the settlers in Quebec wish to kill Champlain?
2. Can you imagine how Champlain looked when dressed in armor

to fight the Iroquois Indians?

3. Try to picture him as living in a "
long house" of the Hurons

when he was spending the winter with them.

4. What do you admire in his character?



LOT IS JOLIET AND FATHER MAR-
QUETTE

\Vim.r. the French colonists and traders were

planting settlements and establishing centres for

tin t'ui- trade with the Indians at various points,

tin- .Jesuit missionaries were equally zealous in

carmni; the Christian religion to many Indian

trihes. One of the bravest of these missionaries,

\\lin was willing to risk his life in gaining converts

to the Catholic faith, was Father Marquette. He
eame to Canada in 1666, fifty-eight years after

Chan i plain made a settlement at Quebec.

A limit five years after reaching the New World,
he l)ii lit up a small mission station at Point St.

I<jnaee, on the north side of what we now call the

Strait of Mackinaw. Here his gentle, refined, and

nnhle nature deeply influenced the Indians, who
had leathered about him in the small village.

lie was not satisfied to settle down at this lit-

-tation, however, while there were new realms

! " eonquer for the Church. His ardor had been

kindled by many reports brought by Indian hunt-
174
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ers of n great river far to tin- west. Similar re-

ports reached tin- ears of the (inventor of Canada,

also, under whose- authority Marquette was work-

A, l\.

*
''

^r
. ~^-. ..

<t\ -'< -~
:V W '"

; lU~ --

The seven explorers in two birch canoes

mg to convert the Indians. When, therefore, the

governor selected Louis Joliet as a suitable man

to go in search of the river, he selected Father

Manjnette also to go with him.
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.loliet was the son of a wagon-maker, and was

l.oni in Canada. Rugged in body, he was eager

for a life of bold activity. In the new enter-
/

prise Cor which he was appointed, he was glad to

ha\c Father JMarquette as his companion. Mar-

gin-lie \\.-is now about thirty-five years old, and it

is with him that our story chiefly concerns itself.

.Jolict was six years younger.

On the- 17th of May, 1673, the two men started

from St. Ignace, taking with them five other

Frenchmen, each of whom was a trained woods-

man. The seven explorers glided over the blue

\\aters <>f the lake in two birch canoes well supplied
with smoked meat and Indian corn. Father Mar-

<l'ette, in his long black cassock, sat in one canoe,
md .Joliet, dressed in a hunting suit of buckskin,
in the other. The woodsmen wore buckskin cloth-

ing and fur caps.

Skirting the northern shore of Lake Michigan,
fl " party paddled their canoes until late in the

afternoon of the first day. Then landing, some of
the men gathered wood and kindled a fire, while
others removed the supplies from the canoes, which

they turned on their sides to serve as a partial
shelter for the niirht.
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On cither side of the fire, the men drove into

the earth forked sticks to support the- cross-pico-

upon which they hung a kettle. In the kettle they

boiled corn, and over the- fire- they broiled the fish

that they had caught during the day. After sup-

per the travellers smoked their pipes while the fire

crackled under the open sky. Then, wrapping

themselves in blankets, they lay down upon the

ground to sleep, with their beads partially covered

by the boats and their feet stretched out toward

the fire.

In the course of their journey they soon came

to the village of the Wild Rice Indians. When
these Indians heard of the white men's plan, they

declared that it could not be carried out. They
said that along the banks of the great river which

the Frenchmen wished to explore dwelt fierce Ind-

ians, ready to slaughter all strangers that might
come within reach. Moreover, they declared that

in this river lived a demon, whose loud roar could

be heard many miles. This demon would swallow
tf

the white men. But if by chance they escaped its

awful jaws, other monsters were ready to devour
/

both men and canoes. None of these stories fright-o
ened Maxquette and Joliet.



ITS / /// cTH 'a n Explorers

Pnvsin^ on to the head of Green Bay, they

entered Fox Hiver, and a little later reached an

> .

'

** " -
-, f- -,

Tl..-y came to the village of the Wild Rice Indians

1 n(li;m to^ *ere they begged for guides to show
tll( '"' the way to the Wisconsin River. With the
" !-

they soon n , l( ., led it and moved Qn
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the Mississippi, which they discovered a week

later.

New sights of strange fish, wild turkeys, deer,

and great herds of buffalo awaited the travellers,

but for a long time they saw no sign of human

beings. At length, after more than a fortnight

of exploring, they discovered footprints of men

on the western hank of the river.

They landed, and Marquette and Joliet, leav-

ing the boat in charge of the men, followed a path

that led from the river out into the plains. After

walking six miles along a well-worn trail, they saw

not far off an Indian village. They also heard

voices. Uncertain at first what they had better

do, they finally gave a shout, and at once the Ind-

ians rushed out of their wigwams in great con-

fusion, some of them looking like frightened deer.

After a few minutes four old Indians advanced,

bringing with them two calumets, or pipes, deco-

rated with feathers. As they came near the

Frenchmen, they paused and presented the pipes

as a sign of peace.

They then led Joliet and Father Marquette to

the principal wigwam of the village, where were

gathered many of the Indians. The guests were
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tli, ir welcomed by an old Indian chief, who said:

"
1 ivin-limcn, how bright the sun shines when you

come to visit us! All our village awaits you; and

you shall enter our wigwams in peace."

A ltd- again smoking the peace pipe, the Ind-

ians ot'the village escorted Marquette and Joliet to

another Indian village not far away, where dwelt

the great chief of the Illinois Indians.

Aiain the white men and the red smoked to--

tlier. after which the chief presented the French-

men with a young Indian boy and with a peace

pipe, trimmed with white feathers. This pipe was

.nivi 'ii to the Frenchmen as a kind of passport to

protect them against enemies in their further ex-

plorations. When this ceremonious introduction

uas over, a feast followed. There were four

coursi The first consisted of Indian meal boiled

in grease, which was served from a wooden bowl.

Tin- chief fed Joliet and Marquette as if they were

el i il< In 'ii. Using a buffalo-horn spoon, he put
"in-,- nr four spoonfuls in Joliet's mouth, and then

three or four in Marquette's. The second course

consisted of fish. Here again the Indian chief

removed the hones with his fingers and blew on
fish to cool it. Then with his fingers he put
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the iish into the mouths of his two guests. The

third course was n large dog, and the last consisted

of fat buffalo meat.

After feasting, Marquette and Joliet spent the

night with the Indian chief, and in the morning

prepared to return to their boats. With about six

hundred warriors the chief escorted them to the

canoes in a friendly farewell.

Paddling slowly down the Mississippi, the ex-

plorers in due time passed the mouth of the Illinois,

the Missouri, and the Ohio. Soon they reached the

mouth of the Arkansas. Here they were sighted

by an eager crowd of young warriors who ad-

vanced and threatened their destruction. But

fortunately the older Indians observed the peace

pipe, which the Frenchmen did not cease to hold

up, and a friendly meeting took place.

The exploring party continued their course

down the river and wrere welcomed in other villages

near by, but the natives were not altogether

friendly. Fearing that if they should go farther

they might be killed by Indians or captured by

Spaniards, Marquette and Joliet decided to re-

turn and report what they had discovered. They

thought they were sure of one thing which was
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known l>el'ore, and that was that the Mississippi

td into (lu- Gulf of Mexico.

They stai-tcd for liome in July, but Marquette
\\as taken sick, so that the journey was made very

slnuly. It was the end of September before they
ivaehed Green Bay, after an absence of four

months. During that time they had paddled their

canoes more than twenty-five hundred miles.

Hi iv Marquette rested, but Joliet continued

"n his way to Montreal. Just before arriving at

that place-, however, his canoe upset. Two of his

'"CM. and the Indian boy that had been presented
to him and .Marquette, were drowned and all the

"taps and papers describing- their explorations were
lost. Juliet himself reached Montreal in safety.

rather Mar<|uette remained at Green Bay, too
ill to travel farther. The hardship of the journey
''"' been a severe strain upon his physical strength.
11 *as a great trial for him to give up his mission-

> work, >"t during the winter that followed his
return he wrote an account of the expedition.

'" the spring of 1G75 he attempted to carry out
'ong^erished plan of preaching to some Indian

^bes on the Illinois River. But after a very short
tinu '

'" became so exhausted that he had to give it
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up. Shortly after Faster IK- embarked in a canoe

with two companions, hoping to get hack to the

little mission at St. Ignace which he had left ahout

two years earlier. Hut before they had gone far in

their journey along the eastern shore of Lake

Michigan, they had to land on account of Mar-

quette's very weak condition. The two French-

men built a shelter of bark for the dying man, and

a few hours later he breathed his last.

His life as a missionary was one of singular

beauty, and the part he took in the expedition down

the Mississippi gives him a worthy place among

explorers.

OUTLINE FOR ORAL AND WRITTEN LANGUAGE

FATHER MARQUETTE AT POINT ST. IGNACE.

JOLIET AND FATHER MARQUETTE START ON THEIR JOURNEY.

THE PARTY LAND FOR THE NIGHT.

A\ l.VKMXG BY THE FIRESIDE UNDER THE OPEN SKY

THE INDIANS TRY TO TURN BACK THE FRENCHMEN.

MARQUETTE AND JOLIET VISIT AN INDIAN VILLAGE.

THE INDIANS GIVE THEM A HEARTY WELCOME.

A FEAST WITH THE RED MEN.

A\ EXCITED CROW!) OF YOUNG WARRIORS.

THE FRENCHMEN START BACK.

JOLIET'S MISHAP.

MARQUETTE'S SICKNESS AND DEATH.
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TO THE PUPIL

1. Imagine yourself with Joliet and Father Marquette when they
land for the night, and describe your experiences.

2. Why did the Wild Rice Indians wish the Frenchmen to turn

back?

3. How do you think you would have enjoyed feasting with the

Indians as the Frenchmen did?

4. Form a mental picture of the excited young warriors, and de-

scribe it.

5. What good resulted from the expedition of Joliet and Marquette?
6. What do you admire in each of these men?
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LA SALLE'S PLANS

THE reports that Marquette and Joliet made

of their exploration of the Mississippi excited great

interest. The French, already in control of the
/

St. Lawrence, were now eager to add the Missis-

sippi Valley to their territory. Among the

Frenchmen of distinction who had this plan most

at heart was Cavalier de La Salle, who was horn

at Rouen in 164-3. Being a member of an old and

wealthy family, he was educated in a manner be-

fitting his unusual traits of mind and character.

He was an earnest Catholic, and early joined the

Jesuits. Later he severed his connection with them,

after making a reputation for excellent scholarship

and high moral character.

At the age of twenty-three he sailed from

France to seek his fortune in Canada. Here he be-

came one more in the long succession of those who

sought the Xorthwest Passage to China. With
185
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the thought of China in mind, he called his first

home, near Montreal, La Chine (China).

We cannot find out just what explorations La

Salle made in the earlier part of his career in

America. Very likely he explored Lake Ontario

and Lake Erie and also the Ohio River.

But he wished to do far more. To secure aid

in carrying out his plans, therefore, he went to

France in 1677 and obtained the King's permission

to explore the Mississippi River. He had two

main purposes. The first was to establish trading

posts at various points on the Great Lakes and

along the Mississippi River, and the second, to

plant a colony and fort at the mouth of the Missis-

sippi. In this way he hoped to carry on an exten-

sive fur trade and to make it secure by having a

colony to protect the fur traders.

THE VOYAGE OF THE GRIFFIN

On his return from France he at once began to

build a vessel with which to explore the Mississippi.

It was built above the Falls of Niagara and was

named the Griffin.

But at the very outset he had to contend with

many difficulties. The ship which was bringing to
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the Niagara Kiver the outfit for the Griffin was

wrecked on Lake Ontario, and nearly e\crytliiim
1

* *

but the anchors and rigging for the new vessel was

On the way to Fort Frontcnac for supplies

lost. To obtain new supplies, La Salic was obliged

to leave his friend Tonti in charge of the ship's

building, while he himself, with two men and a dog
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to drag the baggage on a sledge, set out in Febru-

ary for Fort Frontenac, at the lower end of Lake

Ontario.

He had to travel two hundred and fifty miles

through the forests, and this journey took him a

long time. He did not return until the middle of

the next summer. But when he came back he

found that the Griffin, under Tonti's direction, had

been finished in his absence. This cheered him,

and, the new outfit being adjusted, the Griffin was

launched. It was the first vessel that ever glided

over the waters of Lake Erie.

On August 7th he and his crew started on their

long voyage. They met with many storms. But

in September they reached Green Bay, where an

advance party of fifteen men, whom La Salle had

sent out the year before to gather furs, met

them.

La Salle wished to sell these furs because he

was in debt and because he needed a large supply

of money with which to buy provisions and tools

and to pay his men. Besides, he wished to build

another vessel to take him down the Mississippi

River. When he got his furs together, therefore,

he hastened to send them back on the Griffin in
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charge of six men, with instructions to sell the furs

and hand the money to his creditors.

lie himself, with fourteen men in four canoes,

journeyed southward on the west side of the lake,

leaving instructions for Tonti, who was looking

after La Sallc's affairs at Sault Ste. Marie, to

make his way down the eastern shore and join him
'

at the head of the lake. It was now autumn, and

the wind-swept lakes were far from safe for the

canoes. Often La Salle and his men were drenched

to the skin by heavy rains, and sometimes at night

they had to rest upon the frozen ground with only

the sky ahove them. Their food was a small sup-

ply of Indian corn.

On November 1st they reached the mouth of

the St. Joseph River. The men were eager to

press on to the villages of the Illinois before winter

should set in, but La Salle was determined to wait

for Tonti, his faithful and trusted friend. While

waiting, La Salle set his men to work building a

trading house with palisades. This he called Fort

Miami.

After about twenty days Tonti arrived with
*

more men, and on December 3d the party, thirty-

three in all, proceeded in eight canoes up the St.
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Joseph River. Among La Salle's men were many

grumblers, but besides his faithful friend Tonti

there was also a Mohican Indian who had come

under the spell of La Salle's personality. The

He shot his gun

Mohican was of great service, for he knew the coun-

try well. But at this time he was away hunting,

and there was no one to guide the party over the

portage from the St. Joseph to the Illinois River.
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La Salk 1

, therefore, started out alone to search

for the path leading j'rom one river to the other.

A blinding snow-storm came on. In the midst ofO

it he lost his wav and wandered ahont until nearly

two o'clock in the morning, when he saw the light of

a lire. Supposing his friends were near, he 1 shot his

gun as a signal that he was approaching. Hut on

coming to the fire, he found near it only a heap of

dry grass which had evidently he-en occupied hy a

man. When he shot his gun, he startled from his

bed an Indian who was sleeping there for the night.

La Salle took possession of the grass, rekindled

the fire, and then lay down and slept till morning.

Hut not until four o'clock the next afternoon did

he find his companions.

La Salle and his party were now joined by the

Mohican and were safely guided to the Illinois

River. They descended this river and came to a

larj>'e town of the Illinois Indians. They were
r"> .

away hunting, but La Salle found their corn-pits

and obtained food. lie afterward made a fair re-

turn to the Indians for the corn he took at this time.

In these ways he showed consideration for them,

and lie never had any trouble in winning their

friendship.
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A little distance beyond Lake Peoria, La Salle

decided to build a fort. He had now waited for

some time to get news from the Griffin, but no

news had come. He feared that she was lost, and

his forebodings proved true, for La Salle never

heard from his vessel again.

A DANGEROUS JOURNEY

He had other troubles as well. Some of his

men, including the best carpenters, deserted him,

and little hope remained that he could build a ves-

sel to take him down the Mississippi River.

But he did not despair. Far from it. With

great courage he set his men to sawing forest trees

into planks, hoping still to build his vessel.

In the meantime he finished the fort that he

had decided to build. He called it Creve-Coeur

[krav-keV], which means Heart-Break. The name

La Salle gave this fort tells us something about

his sadness of heart at this time.

But the building of a vessel means something

more than planks and timber. Sails and cordage

and other things were necessary. Hence, in March,

with his Indian friend, the Mohican, and three

Frenchmen, he set out again for Canada. In two
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canoes lie made a journey of a thousand miles to
'

get the- supplies for his great enterprise.

The party took with them powder, shot, blank-

ets, and skins 1'or moccasins. During the first part

'

y /,
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The eartli was mvrrrd with mud and watt r

of their journey they went through half-fro/en

swamps swollen by spring freshets.

Sometimes they found the streams fro/en and
i

had to drag the canoes oxer ice on sledges. At
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other times the ice was not thick enough to support

their weight and yet was too thick for them to break

a passage for the canoes. So the party had to

carry them through the woods.

At last, almost in despair, La Salle and his

men hid the boats and struck across the country

for Lake Michigan. The nights were cold, but by

noon the sun had thawed the earth so that it was

covered with mud and water. At times they all

waded in water up to their waists.

When they reached the St. Joseph River they

started across Michigan. Thick woods and thorny

underbrush tore their clothing into shreds and cut

their faces and hands. This lasted three days.

Then a rapid journey of two days more brought

them to a marshy country.

Once they took off their drenched clothing and,

wrapping their bodies in blankets, slept during the

night on a dry hill. But in the morning they had

to build a fire and thaw their frozen clothes before

they could put them on. At the end of sixty-five

days, after suffering much from toil and hunger,

they reached Fort Frontenac.
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A SKC'OM) ATTKMI'T TO KKAl'II TIIK MISSISSIPPI

Tlii.s was a most dangerous and difficult jour-

nrv, hut La Salic c-ould not take time to rest. The

great aim of all his lahor was yet to be achieved.

He had done his best and had failed. 1 1 is hope for

success now lav in the brave Tonti. lie- must re-
f/

turn to him and help him save for future use the

vessel and the tools they would need to aid them in
/

carrying out their enterprise.

On August 10, 1080, therefore, La Salle sailed

a second time with provisions and an outfit for the

new vessel that was to take him down the Missis-

sippi River. La Salle sailed up the 1 1 umber River,

across Lake Simcoe, and made his way down the

Severn River into Lake Huron. Pressing for-

ward as fast as he could, he finally reached the site

of the fort on the St. Joseph River. From this

point he hastened on with only six Frenchmen and

one Indian. Thus far he had heard nothing of

Tonti, and the anxiety for the welfare of his friend

grew rapidly day by day.

But La Salle kept on until he reached the Illi-

nois country, where his heart was saddened, for
A

the Iroquois Indians had entirely destroyed the
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Illinois town where his faithful friend, Tonti, had

been waiting for his return. In his search for Tonti,

La Salle went down the Illinois to the Mississippi,

but the search was in vain. He returned to Fort

Miami, where he spent the winter, and toward the

end of May set out for Canada to get supplies

with which to make a third attempt to explore the

Mississippi River.

THE THIRD AND SUCCESSFUL ATTEMPT

While searching for Tonti, who had escaped

from the Iroquois Indians, La Salle proceeded to

the Mississippi River, by way of the Chicago and

Illinois rivers.

Thus far he had not succeeded in building a

vessel, and now he gave up the plan and decided to

go down the Mississippi in canoes. In February,

1682, his party, consisting of twenty-three French-

men, eighteen Indian men, ten squaws, and three

Indian children, glided down the waters of the

great river.

In due time they arrived at the mouth of the

Mississippi. Here La Salle erected a column bear-

ing the arms of France and a proper inscription.

He also erected a cross, and amid the singing of
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hymns and other formal exercises, took possession

of the country in the name of Louis, Kini*
1 of

* I

^v-
4

Salic took posM'^ii.n of th- country

France. ITe called the country Louisiana, in

honor of the French monarch.
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LA SALLE PLANTS A COLONY

La Salle was now ready to carry out the last

part of his plan, which was the planting of a colony

at the mouth of the Mississippi River. In order

to accomplish this he returned to France, and in

the summer of 1684 sailed from that country

with four ships bearing two hundred and eighty

men, soldiers, priests, and mechanics, and also hav-

ing whatever was needed to fit out a colony.

Again trouble awaited him, for his fleet did

not succeed in finding the entrance to the Missis-

sippi River. The vessels sailed past the mouth,

and finally landed on the coast of Texas, four

hundred miles west of the Mississippi.

Here La Salle built a fort and named it St.

Louis. But during the summer, disease and suf-

fering and hardship swept away over thirty of his

men. At last he and his colony were left without

ships, as two of the fleet had returned to France

and two were shipwrecked.

La Salle explored the surrounding country in

a vain effort to find the Mississippi. In October,

1685, a year after his return to America, he started

out with fifty men in search of the Mississippi, but

failed to find it.
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After spending the winter in the fruitless

search, he returned in the following .March, having

lost twelve or thirteen of his exploring party. On
the return of the- survivors they were all in lags.

During his exploration, however. La Salic had suc-

ceeded in getting five horses from the Indians.

But things were going from had to worse every

day, and nothing remained except for him to re-

turn to Canada for help.

LA SALLE SHOT BY HIS MEN

Leaving twenty men at Fort St. Louis, with

sixteen companions and five horses to carry the

baggage, he started in January, 1687, on the dan-

gerous journey. They were a motley company.

Some of the travellers were dressed in clothing

they had brought from France, pieced out with

deerskins, and others in garments of sail-cloth.

Moving in a northerly direction, they crossed the

Brazos River and reached the Trinity.

But, as usual, La Salle had enemies near him.

More than once on his various expeditions had his

men turned against him, and in one instance, years

before, they had poisoned his food.

Now they were determined at all hazards to rid



200 American Explorers

themselves of their hated leader. Accordingly,

one day, as he approached the Trinity River, two

of them lay in ambush and shot him dead as he

came near.

The death of La Salle

Thus died, at the age of forty-four years, the

heroic La Salle. He was a man of iron will and

untiring energy. When bent upon accomplishing

one of his great plans, he took no thought for his
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own comfort, and lie- sacrificed without scruple any

one who crossed his path. lie won the affections

of Tonti and of the- .Mohican warrior who acted as

his cviiidc, hut his unbending harshness toward most

of his men kept alive 1 the' hitter hatred which finally

doomed him to death. La Salle's character was

far from perfect. lie was selfish in his methods

and relentless in his hates. Hut he accomplished a

threat work in hewing a way through the pathless

wilderness to the mighty Mississippi, and he de-

serves a plaee among the boldest explorers of the

New World.

OUTLINE FOR ORAL AND WRITTEN LANGUAGE

LA SAI.I .!: AVD THE NORTHWEST PASSAGE.

His TWO LEADING PURPOSES.

TROUBLE IN BUILDING THE GHIFFIX.

TlIE VESSEL STARTS ON HER LONG VOYAGE.

LA SALLI M.NDS BACK THE O'A'////.V.

Hi REACHES THE ST. JOSEPH.

\.\ SALLE LOST IN THE WOODS.

TlIE PARTY REACHES THE ILLINOIS RlVER.

THE LOSS OF THE (ii;ii i i \.

LA S M.I.I MI ILDS FORT CKEVECOEUR.

A l>\\(il.Rol s JOURNEY.

SIXTY-FIVE i>\vs OF TOIL AND SUFFERING;.

Till SECOND VI Tl..MPT TO REACH THE Ml^l^ll'PI FAILS.

Si ESS AT LAST.
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HE SAILS FROM FRANCE TO THE COAST OF TEXAS.

HE BUILDS FORT ST. Louis.

A FRUITLESS SEARCH FOR THE MISSISSIPPI.

ANOTHER LONG JOURNEY BEGUN.

LA SALLE SHOT DEAD.

HlS CHARACTER AND WORK.

TO THE PUPIL

1. Be sure to remember La Salle's two leading purposes.

2. What trouble did he have in building the Griffin?

3. Why did he send the Griffin back? What became of her?

4. Give an account of the dangerous journey taken by La Salle, the

Mohican, and three Frenchmen. Try to imagine yourself with

them during the whole journey.

5. What did La Salle do when he reached the mouth of the Missis-

sippi?

6. Why did many of La Salle's men dislike him?

7. What do you admire about this daring explorer?



PRONUNCIATION OF PKOl'KK XAMKS

Africa (af'ri-ka V

Alhany (al'ba-nii.

Algonquin (al-gon'kin).

Alvarado i
.
al-va-ra't ho).

Annada (ar-ma'da).
A /tees (a//tek~ .

Hahamas ( l>a-ha'maz).

Balboa (bal-bd'a .

Barcelona ( l>ar-se-lo'na).

Hra/il (bra-zil').

Ca!>r/a de Vaca (ka-ba'tha da

va'ka

California (kal-i-for
//

ni-;i).

( 'anarics ( ka-nfi'rix I.

( 'axainarra (kii-hii-inark'ka).

Chaniplaiii (sham-plan' .

Chesapeake (ches'a-pek).

Corte/ (ki'n-'te/).

Cuzco (kox/ko).

1 )c Leon (da la-on').

I-'cnliiiand ( lir'di-nand ).

l
c'miitenac I fn'mt-nak').

(luiaiia (irr-a'iiM (.

Hayti (ha'ti).

Iroquois (ir-o-kwoi').

Joliet (xho-lyfi'j.

Labrador (lal)-ra-dor').

La Salle (la sal').

Lima (le'ma).

Louisiana (lo-e-/.i-an'a].

Magellan (nia-jel'an).

Marina (ma'-re'iia).

KEY TO PROXrXCIATIOX*

a as in fat.

a " "
fate.

a " "
far.

a " "
ask.

e
" " met.

e
' '

mete.

6
" "

lier.

i

" "
pin.

r U

O

r,
'

note.

6
" "

nor.
" "

pine.
" "

not.

ii

u

move.
" " tub.

" mute.

A double dot under any vowel indicates the short u-sound, as in

but.

* According to Century Dictionary.
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204 Pronunciation of Proper Names

Marquette (mar-ket')-

Mediterranean (medi-te-ra'-ne-an) .

Miami (mi-am'e).

Mississippi (mis-i-sip'i).

Montezuma (mon-te-zo'ma).
Montreal (mont-re-al')-

Narvaez (nar-va-eth').

Palos (pa-los').

Panama (pa-na-ma')-
Peru (pe-ro').

Pizarro (pi-za'ro).

Plymouth (plim'uth).

Porto Rico (re'ko).

Portugal (por'tu-gal).

Richelieu (resh'lye')-

San Juan (san ho-an').

Santa Maria (san'ta ma-re'a).

San Salvador (san sal-va-4hor').

Savannah (sa-van'a).

Tonti (ton'te).

Trinidad (trin-i-dad').

Valparaiso (val-pa-rl'so).

Vera Cruz (ve'ra kroz).

Yazoo (ya'zo).
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INC-A, tin-, 7li ft., 04

Incas, 72

Indians, 13, 14, 23-51

Iroquois, 15X f.
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J \\ti:s, KTNC, 137 fT.

Jolict, 174-ls I
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La Salle, 1S5-202

MAGELLAN, 115, 122

Marina. ">")

Manpiette, Father, 174-184

Mexico, 54, 56, 61 fT., l.v,

Mississippi River, 01, 1S6 ff.

Monfe/uma, 56, 58 f.

Montreal. 155, 165, 182

NARVAEZ, 65

ATiwa, 9, 14, 15

Northwest Passage, 143, 165, 185

GILHKKT, SIR HTMIMIIJKY, 124, 125 OKTIZ, 07, OS, 105

Green Hay, 178 ff., l^s

Grenville, Sir Richard, 130 PALOS, 9, 16
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Panama, 73 f., 112, 155 St. Lawrence River, 155, 171,

Peru, 72 ff. 185

Pinta, 9, 10, 12, 14 St. Louis, Fort, 198 ff.

Pizarro, 72-86, 94 Santa Maria, 9

QUEBEC, 155 ff.. 171 TONTI, 187, 189, 195-201
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